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Chairman’s
Statement
ERHRES

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am
pleased to present to shareholders the
annual report of VST Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2013.
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The healthy performance underscores our determination and ability to ride out
the uncertainties of the global economy and sweeping changes in the IT
landscape. The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
HK$40,239,286,000 (2012: HK$37,097,592,000). Gross profit for the year
ended 31 December 2013 amounted to HK$1,516,958,000 (2012:
HK$1,407,374,000). Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2013
amounted to HK$525,127,000 (2012: HK$464,399,000). Basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to HK33.77 cents (2012:
HK29.85 cents) per share.

With the transformation in the IT landscape, we are expanding our product
portfolio to adapt to these changes and offer a wider range of products to our
customers. We are increasing our exposure to mobility devices, in line with
the global shift towards adoption of such devices. We are also building our
Enterprise Systems, which offers higher margins. Both strategies were
reflected in our FY2013 results. During the year, revenue from the Distribution
segment increased by 6.52% to HK$31,953,879,000, contributed 79.41% of
the total Group revenue. The growth was mainly due to higher sales of
mobility devices, hard disks and CPUs. Revenue from the Enterprise Systems
segment increased 17.32% to HK$8,064,408,000, contributed 20.04% of the
total Group revenue. The increase was mainly driven by higher sales of
servers, networking hardware and software products. Revenue from [T
services remain stable at HK$220,999,000, contributed 0.55% of the total
Group revenue.
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Geographically, both North Asia and South East Asia performed well in the
year ended 31 December 2013. During the year, North Asia revenue
increased by 9.89% to HK$31,485,864,000, contributing 78.25% of the total
Group revenue. The growth was mainly from the increased sales of mobility
devices, hard disks, CPUs, servers, networking hardware and software
products. South East Asia revenue increased by 3.64% to
HK$8,753,422,000, contributing 21.75% of the total Group revenue. The
growth was mainly from higher sales of mobility devices, networking hardware
and desktop PCs.

The Group has also benefited from the emergence of internet resellers in both
North Asia and South East Asia. Total revenue generated from internet
resellers amounted to HK$2,033,690,000 (2012: HK$1,228,305,000),
contributed 5.05% of the total Group revenue.

The Group has achieved another set of outstanding results for the year.
Leveraging on our diversified products and strong distribution network, the
Group further improved its product range and expanded its distribution
channels in Asia Pacific. The Group has strong distribution networks with over
30,000 business partners in six countries, including China, Thailand, Malaysia,
Singapore, Indonesia and the Philippines, and our businesses have also
extended from the distribution of IT products for the commercial and
consumer markets to the provision of enterprise system tools for IT
infrastructure, training, maintenance and support services. Our diversified
product lines include HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital,
Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more.

PROSPECTS

Traditional roles have changed in the IT landscape, brought about by the
dynamic shift towards mobility and cloud computing. Technology is moving
quickly, and in so many directions, changing the way we live and work.

While the earlier shifts were about creating efficiency and improvements in
how products were manufactured, the current ICT revolution redefines critical
business assets, creating new economic models and transforming businesses

in the process.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHREE (B

With these in mind, our business has adapted and remained relevant. In fact,
we believe this shift offers opportunities for the Group, leveraging on our
strong relationships with vendors, our sizeable regional network, rigorous
internal processes and strong management team. Even as the industry
evolves, we intend to deepen our market share in emerging markets such as
Indonesia and China, as well as enhance our participation in Enterprise
Systems.

I would like to thank our shareholders for their loyal support for the Group. |
would also like to take this opportunity to express my deepest gratitude to all
of our staff for their whole-hearted devotion and passion towards their duties
and to thank our Board members and business partners for their trust and
support. We are confident in overcoming the challenges ahead and will strive
our best to maximise returns for our shareholders.

Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 March 2014
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Business Model and Strategic Direction

The Group is a leading Information, Communication and Technology (“ICT”)
products and services provider, serving a wide regional customer base. The
Group has 76 offices in six countries namely China, Thailand, Malaysia,
Singapore, Indonesia and the Philippines. The three main businesses are
Distribution, Enterprise Systems and IT Services. The Enterprise Systems
segment designs, installs and implements T infrastructure for companies,
while the IT Services segment provides a comprehensive range of
professional, technical support and training services. Leading IT vendors such
as HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer,
Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more use the Group’s network of
over 30,000 channel partners in the region to distribute their products.

As the leading distributor of ICT products in the region, we have established,
through our reseller channel, a broad customer base ranging from individuals,
small and medium enterprises to large corporations and government entities
who have been serviced by our regional resellers over the past 25 years.

Our infrastructure is built on a fully integrated Enterprise Resource Planning
system to manage our sales, distribution, finance and logistic operations to
provide efficient customer services with speed and reliability.

We have an extensive distribution network of over 30,000 resellers,
comprising retailers, system integrators and corporate dealers. These
resellers not only market a wide range of products but they also provide
support and repair services to the end-users.

The Group creates sustainable value for shareholders through the following
strategies:

o Focus on our key markets in China and South East Asia

° Focus on our extensive list of vendors to expand our product portfolio
o Focus on strengthening our working capital and financial management
° Focus on improving operating efficiencies and cost management

Wiisaan e L s
o L PN PN

EBRARKREE S M@

AEELS—HELNEM  BARAEMK(TER
BARRD EmRRBHER  REEANM
EEPER - REBEOTOENFERENTE -
5@*%%@&~%MW‘@E&%@%ﬁM
BER ZBEI2EXEHIHSOH LERR
BB RT m%?%ﬁﬂﬁ“ﬂm#~ﬁ
KERATEMBMRERRE M E AR
BomAlRHftEEAEE R0 EREI
R EREBMUMERMRHEERNEE
BR - FRE AMD - R A BUER B
BB BV ZE - HEFEX BF - FER
% P BAREE A ESB0,000E RERHD
BEPREADHEER-

FREABRENEMBANKERY HE
AEECEBENHAREZYAMBA -+
PEAERBRABDMBRTERAKRNEAE

FER AEENHESHEBECREFESH
254 o

REBEMERIEDNEEREZALREGLESE
BRERG LWEBHEE DHE UBEEYR

X% tmEHRE  UENSREFRE -

AEBEEERAN D HBL - ZBUE30,000%
DB BREEEN  AOAGAHERAIKHE

BezENHEATEHRES TLER  TAK
wmERERE SR REERE
AEBEBATRBRBRRAETHENE
& :

e NPBEERRETHIEMSREL

. M$§l@5%%
RZEm#

R R RELIAE

. NRFAEEES R BERRE LD

. NHELERERKAARNERRED

BAZKRERLDF —ZFFH

09



10

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWER DN

Business Review

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
HK$40,239,286,000 (2012: HK$37,097,592,000). The Group has shown
strong growth in the Distribution segment, driven by increased sales of
mobility devices, hard disks and CPUs. In the Enterprise Systems segment,
we have seen higher sales in servers, networking hardware and software
products.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to
HK$1,516,958,000 (2012: HK$1,407,374,000). Operating profit for the year
ended 31 December 2013 amounted to HK$707,086,000 (2012:
HK$611,119,000). Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2013
amounted to HK$525,127,000 (2012: HK$464,399,000). Basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to HK33.77 cents (2012:
HK29.85 cents) per share.

The Group has continuously aimed to widen our product range in order to
provide more choices to our customers. Our extensive and diversified product
lines now include HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo,
Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more.
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Prospects

The Group will continue to play an important role as distributor and IT provider
even as the IT ecosystem continues to undergo significant transformation.

Our strategy remains unwavering amidst the winds of change — We
constantly redefine our value proposition as a trusted partner with strong
relationships and deep understanding of our customers’ needs. Strategically
we will continue to expand in China and Indonesia. At the same time, we
work actively to improve internal operational and financial efficiencies to
improve margins, an endeavour which will also see a growing emphasis on
Enterprise Systems. We will also continue to expand our business into
mobility devices and cloud computing.

With our experienced and dedicated management team, we are confident
that we will be able to overcome any obstacles ahead.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$1,168,535,000 (2012: approximately HK$936,009,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$2,698,573,000 (2012: approximately HK$2,266,597,000).
The gearing ratio, calculated as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents
divided by total equity, was 0.42 (2012: 0.41).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group recorded total current assets of
approximately HK$10,674,289,000 (2012: approximately HK$8,999,549,000)
and total current liabilities of approximately HK$7,158,806,000 (2012:
approximately HK$5,839,801,000). The current ratio of the Group, calculated
by dividing the total current assets by the total current liabilities, was
approximately 1.49 times as at 31 December 2013 (2012: approximately 1.54
times).

The Group recorded an increase in shareholders’ funds from approximately
HK$3,234,682,000 as at 31 December 2012 to approximately
HK$3,620,400,000 as at 31 December 2013.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BB W R DA ()

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank deposits of the Group are mainly denominated in United
States dollars, Renminbi and Singapore dollars.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand baht and
Indonesian rupiah.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had property, plant and equipment held
under finance leases and a building pledged against a secured mortgage loan
as set out in notes 5 and 19 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Employees

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 2,136 (2012: 2,249) full time
employees.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry practice,
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from basic remuneration,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well as individual
performance. Other benefits include medical, annual leave and retirement
schemes. The net total remuneration paid for the year ended 31 December
2013 amounted to approximately HK$435,983,000 (2012: approximately
HK$444,244,000). The Group also provides training courses or seminars to
its staff.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2013
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2013
and up to the date of this report.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has complied
with the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) except for
some code provisions which are explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of its
business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises eight members, consisting of four Executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and two Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE (&)

The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 18 November 2013)

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Ms. Chow Ying Chi

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Mao Xianggian (Resigned on 31 March 2013)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Li
Mr. Liang Xin (Appointed on 16 December 2013)
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe (Resigned on 18 November 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Deceased on 17 March 2014)
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)

BUFAITES
SRk

RAERE
RESHELMN_FT-—WF=A+LHHLE)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate ZEEHE(ILLAR D) MR E MR T
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from RARATI AT 2B EBAAREE o
time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board at all imes metthe WHZEZE - ZT—=F+ _A=+—B 1L FE
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three K- & —&E&F&5 TRV EZET 5L =
Independent Non-executive Directors and at the same time representing at ZE UV IFHATEET T RIFIEESZT K E A
least one-third of the Board with at least one Independent Non-executve Z AL =927 — MESHL — LB T IEH T
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or ZF=BE(HE EE X ERN ST HEE T %
related financial management expertise. BEREERZHEBRE -
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Pursuant to Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, every listed issuer
must have at least three independent non-executive directors and at least
one of the independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise and is required to appoint independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the board and pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the Audit Committee of every listed issuer must have at least
three members, at least one of whom is an independent non-executive
director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Following the passing away of Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter who was an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company on 17 March
2014, the Company does not meet the requirements under Rules 3.10, 3.10A
and 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Board will seek to appoint a new
independent non-executive director as soon as practicable to meet the
requirements set out in Rules 3.11 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experience and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRS (E)

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company, with a
view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Functions

In order to meet higher standards of the corporate governance requirements,
the Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirement; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
code and disclosure in this report.
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Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings
The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out below:

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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EEEEE
EEHFEBAREERAH

HE - Z—=F+-_A=+—HBLFERN"
EEHFEESER2BERAERINAT :

Attendance/

Number of Meetings
Directors o HE " BITEBERY
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Jialin (Appointed on 18 November 2013) FTEMREERZZZT—=ZF+—A+N\BZHE) 11
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William FREITEE 5/5
Ms. Chow Ying Chi AL T 5/5
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau PR &M 5 A 5/5
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe (Resigned on 18 November 2013)  Zfk ME4 (R —_E—=F+— A+ /\ B B {E) 4/5
Mr. Mao Xianggian (Resigned on 31 March 2013) FERAIEERZE—=F=A=+—H#MT) 0/1
Non-executive Directors FHITESE
Ms. Liu Li 217 4+ 5/5
Mr. Liang Xin (Appointed on 16 December 2013) PREE(R-_E—=F+_A+XBEF) 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFBITES
Mr. Li Wei FEEE 5/5
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung RAESE 5/5
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Deceased on 17 March 2014) (R Z B+ (R - —WFE= A ++ HEtt) 4/5

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are served
to all Directors in accordance with the Code before the meetings.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting
or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company normally attend all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance
and other major aspects of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRS (E)

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will
be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.

General Meetings

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Ms. Chow Ying Chi,
Ms. Liu Li and Mr. Li Wei, were unable to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 23 May 2013 due to other important engagements.
All other Directors attended the 2013 annual general meeting to answer
questions and collect views of shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Tay Eng Hoe was the Chairman of the Company and Ms. Chow Ying Chi
was the acting CEO of the Company. Subsequent to the resignation of Mr.
Tay Eng Hoe on 18 November 2013, the current Chairman and CEO of the
Company is Mr. Li Jialin. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
Chairman and CEO in the same person will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Directors and the management of the Company
and considers that this structure will enable the Group to make and
implement decisions promptly and effectively. The Directors will meet regularly
to consider major matters affecting the operations of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific months
of notice in writing. Under the service agreements, the initial annual
emoluments of each Executive Director is fixed and the remuneration payable
to each of them will be reviewed by the Board each year.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant to
the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment of
Directors and assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of the
Board regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry out
the selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Li Jialin
and Mr. Liang Xin will retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. In
accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Chan Hoi Chau, Ms. Liu Li and Mr. Ng Yat Cheung will retire from office and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The Board has recommended the re-
appointment of the Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company’s circular contains
detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Continuing Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRS (E)

In addition, all directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company continuously updates Directors on the legal and regulatory
developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars or reading relevant materials
and provided a record of training they received during the year to the
Company.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company also has established a written guideline on terms no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance
by the employees was noted by the Company.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority members of each Board committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors and the list of the Chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under the section of “Corporate Information” of this
annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors
(including one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter, chairman of the Audit
Committee, passed away on 17 March 2014. None of the members of the
Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@)  To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system
and associated procedures.

(d)  To review arrangements which employees of the Company can use to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December

2013 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, and the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings is set out
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There has been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2013 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
Directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for development remuneration policy;
reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors; reviewing and
approving termination compensation, dismissal or removal compensation
arrangements, and ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2013 to review (a) whether the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management are reasonable; and (b) the basis of the
remuneration packages, i.e. qualification, working experience and market
level of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed to
be made.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors. Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter passed away on 17 March 2014. The
attendance of individual members at the Remuneration Committee meeting is
set out below:
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Number of Meetings

HEBTEIRE

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) TIEEE(E ) 171
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Deceased on 17 March 2014) [ &5+ (R -_ZE—WE = A ++ BB th) 1/1
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung RAELAE 11
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Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become board members, assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executives Directors, and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Nomination Committee meeting has been held during the year ended 31
December 2013 for reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director as chairman,
and three Independent Non-executive Directors as members. Dr. Chan Po
Fun Peter passed away on 17 March 2014. The attendance of individual
members at the Nomination Committee meeting is set out below:
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Attendance/
Number of Meetings

HE BITERRE

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman)
(Appointed on 18 November 2013)
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe (Chairman and resigned on
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0/0
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18 November 2013) +—A+/\HEE)
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Deceased on 17 March 2014) BRE S8+ (W - T —F = A ++ BB tt) 11
Mr. Li Wei 2 p
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung RAESE 11
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Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report”.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$4,762,000 and HK$2,155,000 by KPMG for auditing and
non-auditing services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard shareholder investments and the Company’s assets, and
reviewing the effectiveness of such on a semi-annual basis through the Audit
Committee.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority
to the senior management.

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing the Group’s
internal control framework, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The internal control framework also
provides for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic independent reviews on the
operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and risks,
develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified risks,
and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2013

FEYBBRREEHEONE
ZEE

EE2RARFERTHRSE  ERHEREA
o DA B AR ¥ b AR B R H At BE B AR E B AF
ZEAMBTE 2545 F  BM R AR AR 2 5P

EEHRAREFEAREARBANBE _T—
=F+T A=+ —RUEFEZHBERSK -

ERARBIIBZEMAEEHBERER 2 A
BETZERAHNBIZEEHREIA -

RARZHNEZHMAREFTHEAMES
fre@B@z2—_F—=F+-A=+—HLFE"

ERHEHNEEMREZRIEETEZRBER
A5 B 5 Bl ER 44,762,000 7T & 2,155,000
T

WEf B =

EETAAHRTARAMEENE  URE
BREERARAEE YEEBBERZ
BV FHERBETRE -

ARRRBYEAEMFENERRE  BA
ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁzgﬁiéﬂn A REREBRERTE
BECEEREE-

RARIZ EBEEEBERUASBE NI EESE
B OHEREMAEBEE BIENE - &8
REREE - NI EXEETERRZR X
EIREHBRE ©

EEETYEMNBMALELTERB LGS
NBRESEMERETEALRER HETH
FPEI R EEER AREMER Z B
VTHEZZEERETEMIZHR - BRE
BgllMEFEeREEMNEREFRIANES
TRROEERZS -



The Directors have conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function as
well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing internal control system of the Group is effective and adequate.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Associations, any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meeting of the Company, shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Unit 3312, 33/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary.

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to purpose new resolutions at
the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to purpose a
resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting by
following the procedures set out in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting”.
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TEERBE ()

Regarding the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director, please refer to the procedures available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of other Board Committees, and the external
auditors, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings. To
safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’
meetings (other than on procedural and administrative matters) will be voted
by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website
at www.vst.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there had been no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 52, is one of the founders of the
Group and is the Company’s Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director. He is also the
director of VST Computers (H.K) Limited (“VST
Computers”), a subsidiary of the Company. He is
responsible for the overall management and strategic
positioning of the Group. Mr. Li graduated from
Tsinghua University of the People’s Republic of China
with a Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in 1983 and

a Master Degree in Management Engineering in 1986. Mr. Li is the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li, a Non-executive Director of the Company.

Ms. CHOW Ying Chi, aged 45, is an Executive
Director and the Group Chief Operating Officer of the
Company. Ms. Chow has been working with the
Group since 1996. Ms. Chow started working in
business development for the East and North China
region and was appointed as operation director of the
Company in 2002. Currently, Ms. Chow is the director
of VST Computers and the executive director of ECS
Technology (China) Limited, both are subsidiaries of
the Company. Ms. Chow holds a Bachelor Degree of

Arts (Honours) in International Business from the University of Huddersfield in

the United Kingdom.
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Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 42, is an Executive
Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. Mr. Ong is also the director of VST
Computers and an executive director and the Chief
Executive Officer of ECS Holdings Limited (a public
listed company on the Main Board of the Singapore
Stock Exchange), both are the subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Ong holds a Bachelor Degree in
Economics from University College London and a
Master Degree in Analysis, Design & Management of

Information Systems from the London School of Economics and Political
Science. Mr. Ong is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, and Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ong served in a senior

position at PriceWaterhouseCoopers and has extensive working experience
in London and Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of

Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

EERAFAUEREE (&)

Director of Advanced
business in China and

Non-Executive

Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 44, appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in July 2009. He
holds a Bachelor Degree in Electrical Engineering from
the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the United
States of America. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of
experience in personal computer and semiconductor
industry. Mr. Chan is currently the Senior Vice
President — Product Management of VST Computers,
a subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining the
Company in 2005, Mr. Chan served as the Distribution
Micro Devices and was in charge of the distribution
Hong Kong.

Directors

Ms. LIU Li, aged 50, appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in June 2011. Ms. Liu was
one of the founders of the Group and had been
responsible for the overall operations of the Group’s
business in the mainland China from 1991 to 1999
before the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange
in 2002. Ms. Liu holds a bachelor degree in Beijing
Construction Engineering University. Ms. Liu is the
spouse of Mr. Li Jialin, the Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Company.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. LIANG Xin, aged 42, appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in December 2013.
Mr. Liang graduated with a Bachelor Degree from the
Department of Statistics of the Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics in the People’s Republic of
China in 1992. Mr. Liang obtained a Master Degree in
Finance from the Xiamen University in the PRC in
2005. From 1992 to 2004, Mr. Liang has held various
positions in the PRC government and the private
sector. Mr. Liang has worked as a section officer in the Division of Human
Resources and Education of Fujian Provincial Department of Finance. Mr.
Liang has also worked as a section officer in f&2% HZ5LI%E A F] (Fujian
Huaxing Trust and Investment Company Limited). Mr. Liang has worked as a
head of general office in FEMFE S (Huaxing Securities Company Limited)

(“Huaxing Securities”) and has held the position of general manager in the
Research and Development Department, the Securities Trading Department
and the Investment Banking Department in Huaxing Securities where he was
responsible for the stock and futures trading and investment banking
businesses. Mr. Liang has participated in a number of initial public offering,
listing recommendation, reorganisation and acquisition and distribution work
in the PRC. Since June 2004, Mr. Liang has served as head of investment
department, secretary of the board of directors, and vice president in
Shenzhen Eternal Asia Supply Chain Management Ltd. (3|14 203t fE s
%1 B PR A F), the issued shares of which are listed in the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Wei, aged 59, was educated in the PRC,
Germany and Australia. He has over 20 years of
experience in establishing and operating businesses in
Asia, particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li
has previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li has
been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2007. He also
serves as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee
and members of Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of

Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

EERAFAUEREE (&)

Mr. NG Yat Cheung, JP, aged 58, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in September 2011. Mr. Ng holds an Associate Degree
in Arts in Business Data Processing from Chabot
College in the United States. Mr. Ng holds offices as
director with a number of private companies which are
principally engaged in technology, property
development, finance and property holding. Mr. Ng is
also an independent non-executive director of China
Agri-Products Exchange Limited and Tao Heung

Holdings Limited, the shares of both companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He also serves as the members of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Company Secretary

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Ms. YUE Cheuk Ying, aged 33, appointed as the
company secretary of the Company in September
2011 and is responsible for the secretarial matters of
the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in
Public and Social Administration and a Master of
Science in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong.
She is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She joined the Group
in December 2009.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are
pleased to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the distribution of information technology (“IT”) products
and the provision of enterprise systems and IT services.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 7 to the financial
statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2013 represented
approximately 18.9% (2012: approximately 20.6%) of the Group’s total
turnover, and the combined total of the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 27.4% (2012: approximately 25.4%) of the Group’s total
turnover for the year ended 31 December 2013.

In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2013
represented approximately 25.5% (2012: approximately 27.5%) of the
Group’s total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 74.5% (2012: approximately 73.7%) of the
Group’s total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2013.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 54.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2013 of HK8 cents per ordinary share (2012: HK8 cents).
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE @&

Bonus Issue of Shares

During the year under review, the board proposed a bonus issue on the basis
of two bonus shares for every ten existing shares (the “Bonus Issue”) held by
the shareholders in recognition of their continual support and the Bonus Issue
was approved at the annual general meeting held on 23 May 2013. A total of
248,007,333 bonus shares were issued on 7 June 2013 pursuant to the
Bonus Issue.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 56 and note 16 to the financial statements
respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Borrowings

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
14 to the financial statements.
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Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to approximately HK$182,999,000 (2012: approximately
HK$241,619,000). In addition, the Company’s share premium account as at
31 December 2013, in the amount of approximately HK$758,001,000 (2012:
approximately HK$774,195,000), may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares in accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman
Islands.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of

Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 144.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2013, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE @&

Directors =
The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31 REZE-_ZFT—=ZF+-_A=Z+—BILFER
December 2013 and up to the date of this report are: MNEEAREBPEARZARAIES A
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) FEMELE (EERTHEE)
(Appointed on 18 November 2013) (R=ZZE—=F+—A+N\BZE)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William FEM &
Ms. Chow Ying Chi WRELZ+
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau BRI S A&
Mr. Mao Xianggian (Resigned on 31 March 2013) EMAIEERZT—Z=F

=A=+—H#®ME

Non-executive Directors FHITESE

Ms. Liu Li BIH &+

Mr. Liang Xin (Appointed on 16 December 2013) 2MRFAERZE—=FF+=ZA+BZMF)
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe (Resigned on 18 November 2013) BoxMEE(RZTE—=4F

T—A+TN\BEE)

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES

Mr. Li Wei FlERE

Mr. Ng Yat Cheung REERAE

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Deceased on 17 March 2014) REZBET(R_Z—NF=A++ HE)

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Li Jialin R R A 7 7 4 4 S 12 40 B 58615 - FEM
and Mr. Liang Xin will retire and being eligible, will offer themselves for re- AN ZMEL BN EEBRRBFEFAS LR
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. In accordance with Article I * A& &K A S B 28T - RIBA QA
87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Chan Hoi Chau, Ms. Liu Li 7 B =R ABIE8715 - BEMEL - BlF &
and Mr. Ng Yat Cheung will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer +TRREBEXABREEBRREFAS LG
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. BRAE WFEERBBEEEEET-

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its Independent AR FHERCIEE FTHHBNESE LB IE
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant H{TE EH B E 2 BT MIEH EEZEHER M
to the Listing Rules and the Company considers the Independent Non- AR BRABIIERNTESHEBBILIE -
executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific months
of notice in writing.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each Executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
are appointed by the Board but subject to re-election or retirement by rotation
at each annual general meeting as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE @&

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the year ended 31 December 2013 or at any time during the year under
review.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have no interests in any competing business.

Biographical Details of Directors and Company
Secretary

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the company secretary are set
out on pages 27 to 30.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set out
in note 28 to the financial statements.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or required
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

(@) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (#E)

= “RA=+—RB ARFAESF
REZTHRABRARE S EAMAEEE

(T3 % R 150 ) EXVER) 2 B4 - 8B
19 3% 1B R P MR AR B B 5 R 9T I ) S XV
HET RS WA MG AR T R
RAkE(BEREREESRBERIIZE
S EL Y- A Y% Tk
R/HARDANAR TR E S RS 555
352l By BRM 2 s AR BB L
FRAERE A DA R R S RAR
mF -

@ RADE B R AR R D 2
B m

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Long/Short ordinary shares or capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held Company
BEEBRE HAQFSBIT
EEnR ¥ RE 54 HEROBE RAZHBANBEIL
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 64,867,200 4.34%
FEMEE "HE EmEa A
Long Beneficial owner 1,800,000 Share options 0.12%
A BEmERA 1,800,000 17 & A% 18
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 (Note 1) 19.43%
corporation
e HyEEE s 290,340,000 (K 7% 1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 (Note 2) 13.68%
HE ENI Y £ 204,309,600 (K 7#2)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 249,600 0.02%
FEMFTTE e EmEE A
Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 Share options 0.10%
He EmEA A 1,440,000 17 i A% 12
BAZRERQIA —T-=FF%H
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (ontinveq)

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the

Company (continued)
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Long/Short ordinary shares or capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held Company
BHEEBRE HEXATERT
BEEnR BRE g6 HEARGHEE RAZHBABTIL
Ms. Chow Ying Chi Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 Share options 0.10%
PHREL T A EmEEA 1,440,000 17 # A% #
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 Share options 0.10%
BR8N 5t A HE EmEA A 1,440,00017 & f% ##
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 13.68%
2% 22+ A EmlEBA
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 (Note 1) 19.43%
corporation
e EAE RS 290,340,000 (At7F 1)
Long Family interest 64,867,200 (Note 3) 4.34%
A EN X 64,867,200 (ff#£3)
Long Family interest 1,800,000 Share options (Note 4) 0.12%
S ENI 1,800,000 17 & A& # (ff 2 4)
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter Long Beneficial owner 768,000 0.05%
(Note 5)
PRESEL HE E=EBA
(Kt aE5)
Long Beneficial owner 240,000 Share options 0.02%
e EmEE A 240,00017 i i% 4
Mr. Li Wei Long Beneficial owner 240,000 Share options 0.02%
FIEEE HE EmEA A 240,00017 & fx
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EES2RE (B)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and =
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and 7 $

32 gz kA
Debentures (continued) mRRE @
(@) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the (@ RARXTIARPRBEBERH 2

Company (continued) &= (#)

Notes: Hiat -

1. 290,340,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire 1. 7R A @) 2.290,340,000 % B% 7 BL&L
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his Limited¥¥ A - MZ A A2 22 TR
spouse, Ms. Liu Li. AEFEMEERAERBIF LT

ERA-

2. 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of 2. 7K A \) 2 204,309,600 J% A% 19 B 2= £ R
Mr. Li Jialin. EEZRBEIMEL LR -

3. 64,867,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse 3. 7K1 A 264,867,200 8% A& 17 B 21 F) &2 &
of Ms. Liu Li. ZEBEEMREERE -

4. 1,800,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the 4. 7K 7] 21,800,00017 B A% 4% B B #) 2
spouse of Ms. Liu Li. T B BEEMEERTE -

5. Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter passed away on 17 March 2014. 5. FrRxE+R_E—NE=A++H

FH e
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (ontinveq)

(b) Interests in shares and underlying shares of associated
corporation — ECS Holdings Limited (“ECS”)

NHEEOEE 2 IR0 R BB R
MzEzm —ERBFEERA

a (MERRRD
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Long/Short ordinary shares or issued share
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held capital of ECS
BEZBERY HEARKS BT
EEHR #RRE =80 HBEROBE RAIAZBNBEIL
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 300,000 Share options 0.08%
FREEE He EmEE A 300,000 17 & i 1&

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’

x
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying {3 > 4
Shares and Debentures )

As at 31 December 2013, so far is known to the Directors, the following R _-_ZT—=F+_-/F=+
persons had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or were
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting
of any other members of the Group:

Directors’ Report (continued)
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AT AT RARDR R 2 B K& 58 BB
BRERBESFLRPEGRIIEXVEF2K37 &
ZHEXEMEARNR MR ARE 2R RS
ARBRR/HABACARRARBEEFLFRBE
& Bl 3361617 B 2 B 2 it 2 # & &3k
B R/ARMEREEAEEMBRITRA
SEEMEMKEARZRRAGLER

{E {o] £85I AR 7S o B 5 ok Pl 5 B B TEI (B 5% 3k BA

2 1%

Number of

Approximate

Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
EEpg KA 56 REZERSEEROEE BMHARET DL
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 64,867,200 4.34%
FEMEE HE EmEB A
Long Beneficial owner 1,800,000 Share options 0.12%
e EmBEAA 1,800,000 17 i i #
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 (Note 1) 19.43%
corporation
we REEE S 290,340,000 (Af7£ 1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 (Note 2) 13.68%
S EN I 204,309,600 (At 7#2)
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 13.68%
2IF 4+ A EmlA A
Long Interest of a controlled 290,340,000 (Note 1) 19.43%
corporation
He RYEEE S 290,340,000 (Af7E 1)
Long Family interest 64,867,200 (Note 3) 4.34%
e ENI o 64,867,200 (/7 & 3)
Long Family interest 1,800,000 Share options (Note 4) 0.12%
He ENI 1,800,000 17 & B # (ff 2t 4)
BHERERAT T —=FFR
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE @&

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying . ﬁ RS KE
Shares and Debentures (ontinueq) MRE @
Number of Approximate
Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
EEHE 373 =37 BRELERSEEROEE BHARERD
L & L Limited Long Beneficial owner 290,340,000 (Note 5) 19.43%
e ERmEAA 290,340,000 (¥ 7£5)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Long Beneficial owner 226,029,998 (Note 6) 15.13%
A BEmEAA 226,029,998 (Kt 7% 6)
wImE Bt EER AR AT Long Interest of a controlled 226,029,998 (Note 7) 15.13%
corporation
e EEEEER 226,029,998 (Mt 7)
YT R BIR B R AR AR Long Interest of a controlled 226,029,998 (Note 8) 15.13%
corporation
e R EE RS 226,029,998 (it i#8)
Zhou Guohui Long Interest of a controlled 226,029,998 (Note 8) 15.13%
corporation
) B A REEEE R 226,029,998 (#f7#8)
Fidelity Long Investment manager 163,755,600 10.96%
e "B IR
Mutual Funds Elite Long Custodian corporation 89,900,400 6.02%
A FEE QA

Notes:

1. 290,340,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

2. 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of Mr. Li

Jialin.

3. 64,867,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of Ms.

Liu Li.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (ontinueq)

Notes: (continued)

4.

1,800,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and
his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by ;&3I4
Rt EERN AR AT,

2.78% and 40.87% of the shares of R A e ML ESEMR(H B R A are held
by FARBEBEERKERAT and RIIMELBERELRRER QA
respectively. 49.1% of the shares of FafEEF & IBHEREHL AR AF] are held by &
Yrta B EERER DR

94% of the shares of &I 1ATR @RI EIEI AR A F] are held by Mr. Zhou
Guohui.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, so far is known to the
Directors, no person had an interest and/or a short position in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or was
directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting
of any other members of the Group, or any options in respect of such capital.
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6. Eternal Asia (HK) Limited 2 2 & 2 277 J% 48 /1 /%
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE @&

Share Options

(@) Share option scheme of the Company

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 17
April 2002 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group. Further details of
the Scheme are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

During the year under review, no share options have been granted or
cancelled. Details of the share options movement under the Scheme
are as follows:

B

NG P -]
ARAE-FE-FMA+LARM—

(@

HAE R R B (%t &)

EERAE

R2EEQ/REEEL ZEREHRAED
MR T8 2~ HRFBARYE

R FEI5A ©

EEEFEARN  SECHBERERRD
Kt LT T ZBREZ BB

T
As at Exercise
As at Lapsed Adjustment Exercised 31 December price per
Name or category of 1 January during the due to during the 2013 share (HK$)
participant Date of offer 2013 year bonus issue year (Note 1) (Note 2) Exercise period
R-B—=F SR{THEE
RZB—Z=F FEALRR 31T +=A=+-—H (&)
SHEERANER EHEH —A—H FREY [l i3k FRITE (Htat1) (Wtat2) 1T
Directors
=S
Mr. Li Jialin 23/03/2011 1,500,000 — 300,000 — 1,800,000 2.028 23/03/2013—
FEMEE 22/03/2021
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William 23/03/2011 1,200,000 — 240,000 — 1,440,000 2.028 23/03/2013—
FEMEE 22/03/2021
Ms. Chow Ying Chi 17/02/2011 1,200,000 - 240,000 - 1,440,000 2.227 17/02/2013—
BWRELL 16/02/2021
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau 23/03/2011 1,200,000 — 240,000 - 1,440,000 2.028 23/03/2013—
BRI M % &= 22/03/2021
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter 23/03/2011 200,000 — 40,000 — 240,000 2.028 23/03/2013—
(Note 5) 22/03/2021
BREFIEL
(H5E5)
Mr. Li Wei 23/03/2011 200,000 - 40,000 - 240,000 2.028 23/03/2013—
FlEEE 22/03/2021
Sub-total: 5,500,000 - 1,100,000 - 6,600,000
N
Employees and others ~ 20/02/2009 14,400,000 (200,000) 2,840,000 (6,000,000) 11,040,000 0.45 & 20/02/2009—
(Note 3&4 ) 817/02/2011 2.227 & 22/03/2021
EERHAb & 23/03/2011 2.028
(Bt7t35%4)
Total #85t : 19,900,000 (200,000) 3,940,000 (6,000,000) 17,640,000
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Share OptiOHS (continued)

(@

Share option scheme of the Company (continued)

Notes:

1. Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, the number of the outstanding
share options have been adjusted as a result of the bonus issue of shares
of the Company on 7 June 2013.

2. Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, the exercise prices of the
outstanding share options have been adjusted as a result of the bonus
issue of shares of the Company on 7 June 2013. For share options
granted on 2 February 2009, the exercise price was HK$0.54 (adjusted to
HK$0.45); for share options granted on 17 February 2011, the exercise
price was HK$2.672 (adjusted to HK$2.227); and for share options
granted on 23 March 2011, the exercise price was HK$2.434 (adjusted to
HK$2.028).

3. 200,000 share options of the Company held by Mr. Mao Xianggian lapsed
as a result of his resignation as an Executive Director of the Company on
31 March 2013.

4. Mr. Tay Eng Hoe exercised 6,000,000 share options of the Company on
14 November 2013 and subsequently resigned as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 18 November 2013.

5. Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter passed away on 17 March 2014,

Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS Holdings
Limited (“ECS”)

The Company’s subsidiary, ECS, adopted a share option scheme, the
ECS Share Option Scheme Il (the “Scheme 1I”) on 13 December 2000
whereby the directors of ECS are authorized, at their discretion, to
invite ECS’s employees and directors, including non-executive directors
of ECS and its subsidiaries to take up options to subscribe for shares
of ECS.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Share Options (continued)

(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS Holdings
Limited (“ECS”) (continued)

During the year under review, no share options have been granted.
Details of the share options movement under the Scheme Il are as
follows:

BB e

(b) PFE B EERERT & —ERB
RAERQ B (ERBED @

EOEFER SIETANBREER
HeFt8NTzBREZSHFHBET

As at Exercised Lapsed As at Exercise
Name or category of Date of 1 January during the during the 31 December price per
participant offer 2013 year year 2013 share (S$) Exercise period
R=ZZ—Z= R=ZZ—Z=Z5 BRTHEE
SHEHEMERER EAHBEH F—HA—H HFROTE FRA® +TZHA=+-—-HB EimKrx) TEH
Director
i)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, 15/10/2010 300,000 — — 300,000 0.55 5 years from date of
William grant
FEFTTE BERH B EESF
Employees and others 15/10/2010 11,750,000 — (1,500,000) 10,250,000 0.55 5to 10 years from
(Note 1 & 2) date of grant
EBERHEAM B A E AT
(Mfst1k2) 5ZE104F
Total 485t : 12,050,000 — (1,500,000) 10,550,000
Notes: Hiat -

1. 900,000 share options of ECS held by Mr. Mao Xianggian lapsed as a
result of his resignation as an Executive Director of ECS on 31 March
2013.

2. Mr. Tay Eng Hoe who holds 700,000 share options of ECS, resigned as a
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 November 2013.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any
of the companies comprising the Group, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year under review.
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Connected Transactions

Connected transactions (also related party transactions) have been disclosed
in note 31 of the financial statements.

The above transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
entered into on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis and
the terms of the above transactions are fair and reasonable so far as the
shareholders of the Company are concerned and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company taken as a whole.

The above connected transactions constituted exempted connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as each of the percentage ratios is less
than 0.1% as defined under the Listing Rules when the agreements were
entered into.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

Audit Committee

The Company’s audited results for the year ended 31 December 2013 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee which is of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VST Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 51 to 143, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2013, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Independent Auditor’s Report

B M 2% AN ¥

BEAERERAAINMUKRRNE LB
BE
(RAEEHEEIMA LB ERR )

R ERERESIE14BERTERERA
RITERADREMBAR(GRIEEE]H
RAVE®RE BLEKEUBRERBENRZ
T—=FF+_A=+—"HNRERRFEE
BEXR HBEZHOLFENLKABEER KA
THEGRR GAEZZIRELGZAED
MERK URETZSFHEEHE R EMEF
BAEK -

EERARSUBRRAEKIE
ZE1E

ERREFALERBEEGHMASRM
MEBVBREELREFERBRD N E
RERBEFLHEEAFRROES M BT
R UREERRIABETEFEANKFHL
BRMEBBEAERRANGE P BERRE
VB R R H] o

BB 2B

BANEERREBEEMNEZEZEEAN
BHRRERER -AREEDBEBRREL
Bl 2 A mEREEMBE W - KM TS5
ARENABRAEMEMALE EHAEE
Al E A -

BHMPCRETESAMASEMNETBR
ERETEZ RFEUBRRMETER
MRE WYREIRATES NAEBEMFL
EHMBHRRES N FAEEMERERRAL -

BHERERLIE —T =%

49



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B 2B RS (&)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2018 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2014
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As at 31 December 2013 74 =

Consolidated Balance Sheet

s

2013
—E-=F

Notes HK$’000
M 5T THT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y WEREE 5 115,747
Goodwill RS 6 333,052
Interest in associates EAH% NG ok 9 315,467
Interest in a joint venture REEDENEZ 10 23,041
Deferred expenses ﬁ R 11 11,488
Deferred tax assets EERIBE E 18 54,578
853,373
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A E W FIA 11 6,861,304
Inventories FE 12 2,644,450
Cash and cash equivalents ReELHEEEEBY 13 1,168,535
10,674,289
Total assets BMEE 11,527,662
EQUITY E=
Share capital N 14 149,404
Reserves s 3,239,094
3,388,498
Non-controlling interests FERER 231,902
Total equity R A 3,620,400

BAERERLE

ﬁ1/\,§1F§

g5 &

—=%+=-A=1+—H

2012

HK$°000
TR

122,782
339,756
310,172

19,432
55,735

847,877

5,340,437
2,723,103
936,009

8,999,549
9,847,426

124,004
2,876,711

3,000,715
233,967

3,234,682

—=FF®
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

ReEEEER(E

As at 31 December 2013 R ZZE—=F+ A =+—H

2013 2012
—_E-—=5 —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
M 5T THT FHET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities *RBER
Deferred income IR IE U A 17 14,656 24,231
Borrowings BE 19 696,497 719,099
Deferred tax liabilities EERIE B & 18 37,303 29,613
748,456 772,943
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B REMENZE 17 5,125,347 4,265,934
Borrowings R 19 2,002,076 1,547,498
Taxation payable AN 31,383 26,369
7,158,806 5,839,801
Total liabilities HweE 7,907,262 6,612,744
Total equity and liabilities EaRkBEAR 11,527,662 9,847,426
Net current assets REBEEFE 3,515,483 3,159,748
Total assets less current liabilities BWEEBRRBER 4,368,856 4,007,625

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March EEER T —WF= A+ B & kR #E

2014, nE: K
Li Jialin Chow Ying Chi
FEM PWRE

Director Director

EF 2

The notes on pages 59 to 143 are an integral part of these financial S859F 1438 2 I st K R BT % 3 & 2 — &

aN

statements. 77 °
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Notes
B 5
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y WEREE 5
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AT ZIRE 7
Current assets REEE
Prepayments TET A 11
Cash and cash equivalents HekREEEY 13
Total assets wEE
EQUITY Ex
Share capital N 14
Reserves & 16
Total equity MR
LIABILITIES &1&
Current liabilities REBAE
Amount due to a subsidiary AN ENGIE S 8
Other payables and accruals H A FE < 5RIB R FE ET RE 17

Total liabilities

wmEE

Total equity and liabilities EakBERE
Net current liabilities REBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBAERS

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March

2014.

Li Jialin
FEM
Director

EF

T o

Chow Ying Chi
B2
Director

EF

The notes on pages 59 to 143 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

N
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o

Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 December 2013 R ZZE—=F+=_HA=+—H

2013
—EBE—=5F
HK$’000
TERT

400
1,398,709

1,399,109

309
8,774

9,083

1,408,192

149,404
960,928

1,110,332

297,830
30

297,860
1,408,192

(288,777)

1,110,332

BAZKRERLDF

2012

HK$°000
FTERT

533
1,393,898

1,394,431

309
1,123

1,432
1,395,863

124,004
1,041,134

1,165,138

230,695
30

230,725
1,395,863
(229,293)
1,165,138

EFEgR_ZE-NEF=ATARAHERRE

FEOE143E 2 A AN 3R K 2 — &

T ZFFR
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Consolidated Income Statement

™~ A = 2 Z
,%an/:u\ Eﬁﬁ%

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

Notes
B 5

Turnover HERE 20
Cost of sales & B AR
Gross profit E
Other gains, net H g A5 58 21
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX
Administrative expenses TR X
Operating profit 45 & 5 22
Finance costs W5 E A 23
Share of associates’ profits DAEEEE D R A
Share of joint venture’s loss DIEEETEEIE
Profit before taxation B 75 5 F
Taxation BiIE 24
Profit for the year F & F
Attributable to: LT ALES:

Equity shareholders of the Company RATERFEA

Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR =
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) & & A (Z A 27

— Basic —HEXK

— Diluted —
Dividend attributable to equity shareholders ERERFEEARE

Final dividend proposed ¥R R AR B 26

Adjusted for the bonus issue in 2013

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to profit for the year are set out in note 26.

The notes on pages 59 to 143 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2013

2013
—E—=F
HK$’000
THET
40,239,286

(38,722,328)
1,516,958

56,169

(540,661)

(325,380)
707,086

(81,198)

625,888
33,102
(188)

658,802
(133,675)

525,127
502,725
22,402

525,127

33.77 cents 1l

33.77 cents 1l

120,000

2012

HK$'000
TAT
37,097,592

(35,690,218)
1,407,374

20,559

(631,547)

(285,267)
611,119

(75,862)

535,257
36,304

571,561
(107,162)

464,399
444,236
20,168

464,399

29.85 cents IlI*
29.77 cents {llI*

100,000

* ER T =FOARBTELAR

B TARR ST E AREEMHEF ARG
B R 15 BB RE26 ©

FE0E1438 o M sF AR A I mME 2 — 36

N

4o



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

METHBEZGD K

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012

—E-=F —F—C

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FET

Profit for the year F R 525,127 464,399

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax:  E A E M2 EU A - B E

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to EgsEmoEeEgy
profit or loss — Exchange differences HE-[EHZEE (29,251) 66,010
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEMBAREE 495,876 530,409
Attributable to: LT AT :
Equity shareholders of the Company VIN/NETR - E=P = S IN 477,311 503,710
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR = 18,565 26,699
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEABRALE 495,876 530,409

The notes on pages 59 to 143 are an integral part of these financial Z559Z 1438 Z M sx K KB K w K 2 — 2F
statements. e

N
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n‘/-ﬁ *

For the year ended 31

4=4

/ \ mom

% B 3R 3}

December 2013 #ZE T —=F+=-A=+—HILFE

Equity
attributable to
Capital the Company’s Non-
Share Share redemption  Capital General Translation Other Retained equity  controlling Total
capital premium reserve  reserve - reserve reserve reserve earnings  shareholders interests equity
gx ARARERE FER
RE RBEE HORE EARE -REE  EXFEFE HERE RKREEF BARLER i ARER
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
TET TF#E=n TET TER TER FET FET TERL FET FET FET
Note (i) Note (i) Note (iii) Note (iv) Note (v  Note (vi)
2 () WEREG)  HEREG)  BREGY) M) HEw)
Balance as at 1 January 2012 R-E--%-F—-R
a1 124,066 772,512 4466 12,814 36,282 151,179 (181,371) 1,667,579 2,587,527 209,702 2,797,229
Profit for the year FREA - - - - - - - 444,236 444,236 20,163 464,399
Other comprehensive income Hi2@EkA - - - - - 59,474 - - 59,474 6,536 66,010
Total comprehensive incomefor £ R 2 E WA LE
the year - - - - - 59,474 - 444,236 508,710 26,699 530,409
Dividends paid to non-controling [ 3F i W’éﬁ A
interests A - - - - - - - - - (5,229) (5,229)
Transfer of reserves R ﬁ - - - - 4307 - - (4,397) - - -
Equity-settled share-based payments ARk (7 % 1+ 7 % & B FE - - - 10,228 - - - - 10,228 - 10,228
Dividend paid (Note 26) BT & (35 26) - - - - - - - 99,209) 99,203) — 99,209
Changes in non-controlling interests 7 &£ BRI B 2 7 2
arising from a decrease in the R D BT E A 8
Group's shareholding in ERERESEY
a subsidiary - - - - - 68 (984) - 916) 2,338 1922
Acquisition of additional interest IR RES R
in a subsidiary from B AR EMER
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - (43) (43)
Repurchase of own shares BEAS KRG
— Par value paid -BHEE (62) - - - - - - - 62) - 62)
— Premium paid - BREE - - - - - - - (569) (569) - (569)
— Transfer between reserves -GERER - - 62 - - - - 62) - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2012~ RZZ——F
+tZA=t-Bz&H 124,004 772,512 4528 23042 40,679 210,721 (182,355) 2,007,584 3,000,715 233,967 3,234,682
Representing: RE:
Share capital R 124,004
Reserves G 2,776,711
Proposed dividend KRS 100,000
3,000,715

Balance as at 1 January 2013

WZZ-=45-A-H
28

124,004
Profit for the year EREA
Other comprehensive income Hp2EKA
Total comprehensive income for FREERALE
the year
Dividends paid to non-controling [l 342 IR AE R 1 2 B &
interests
Transfer of reserves ARG
Equity-settled share-based payments JARR 17 3 1 2 B £ E TR
Dividend paid (Note 26) B (H3E26)
Changes in non-controlling interests 7% & [ 1\ it /& 2 7) 2 Ik 4
arising from an increase in the BEMAEERFER
Group's shareholding in BRED
subsidiaries o
Bonus issue ARET 24,800
Share options exercised EETEERE 600
Balance as at 31 December 2013~ R =Z—=%F
TZA=t+-Bz&% [REEKZ
Representing: R&:
Share capital (LN
Reserves &
Proposed dividend RRRE

The notes on pages 59 to 143 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
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772,512

(20,272)
4,078

756,318

(4,52_8)

23,042

)

22,178 49,285

210,721

(25,41_4)

(25,414)

185,307

(182,355)

(176,494)

2,007,584

502,725

502,725

)

(99,20_3)

2,402,500

3,000,715

502,725
(25,414)

477,311

1,114
(99,203)

5,861

2,700

3,388,498

233,967

22,402
(3,837)

18,565
(5,227)

(15,403)

231,902

3,234,682

55,127
(29,251)

495,876
(5,227)

1,114
(99,203)

(9,542

2,700
3,620,400

149,404
3,119,094
120,000

3,388,498

FEHOE1BE M B AT B K 2 —
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Notes:

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # = =%

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference between
the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and that of
the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the Group reorganisation in April
2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April 2002; and (c) the premium arising from
the new issue of shares, net of share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium may also be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled shares
of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to Companies Law
(revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of the Company and the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 2.16(d).

According to the current the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”),
the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10% of their profits
after taxation to statutory surplus reserve until the surplus reserve balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital. For the purpose of calculating the amount
to be transferred to the reserve, the profit after taxation is the amount determined
under PRC accounting standards. The amount of transfer to this reserve has to
be made before profit distribution to shareholders. In accordance with the
relevant regulations, this reserve may be used to make up any losses incurred or
to increase the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.3(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between the consideration paid and the
relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of subsidiaries for the
transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (Note 2.2(a)).

Wiz

(i)

(i)

(v)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n‘l-ﬁ R e IE' N7 /)Il.: E $& ’13—%

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E—= —EF—=
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B 7 FHERT FAET
Cash flows from operating activities BEXEB2RERE
Net cash generated from/(used in) KBS/ (TR EE T8
operations 29 133,569 (724,576)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERNEBEREH (51,572) (103,754)
Overseas tax paid 28N IE (68,248) (75,019
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating RESEEE(FrR)ES
activities R 13,749 (903,349
Cash flows from investing activities REZGHZ2HER=
Interest received B UFE 10,110 7,795
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELRE (14,911) (13,801)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant st ’% M- BE R
and equipment HREMEREIE 1,186 416
Investment in a joint venture REELERNE é‘ (23,125) -
Dividends received from an associate H&Z BR B &~ Al AR 9,805 13,925
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing wEES (FT A )/ i8R &
activities F (16,935) 8,335
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEHCELSRE
Payment for repurchase of shares % 51 AR 19 1+ 3K (631)
Proceeds from exercise of share options ITIEBIRETS I8 —
Exercise of share options by non-controlling JE o P A 25 1T (R B AR A
interests 1,922
Changes in non-controlling interests arising REBRWE QR Z Kk
from an increase in the Group’s shareholding NPT EE A Y FE I A
in subsidiaries T 2 (9,542) (43)
New bank borrowings LR ITEE 12,882,441 12,378,865
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITEE (12,444,597) (11,998,511)
Payment to non-controlling interests LA IR R (5,227) (5,229)
Interest paid [EEEAES (81,198) (75,862)
Dividend paid B8R E (99,203) (99,203)
Net cash generated from financing activities BB EEAEH S FE 245,374 201,308
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeRBELSEMEM
cash equivalents O L) 58 242,188 (693,706)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BZREX
at 1 January REeEEY 936,009 1,573,134
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXFH w8 (9,662) 56,581
Cash and cash equivalents R+ZA=+—HZH& K
at 31 December ReEEEY 13 1,168,535 936,009

The notes on pages 59 to 143 are an integral part of these financial  £559%F 1438 ~ MisTiER A S HE 2 — 35 o
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

General Information

VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the distribution of information
technology (“IT”) products and the provision of enterprise systems and
IT services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33th Floor, China
Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$’'000), unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March
2014.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the current and prior years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

B %5 ¥R 3R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

—REHR

BAERERABDTART D) REMEB
RA (MBI AEE)) ZEBZXBE RN H
BEAMRTEMAMKRDERARFED
EEXRRERAMERSE

ARAAEERESBEEIMRIZER
NE - HFIELEMB AT BT HET
2005k 514 L 7 B R ES3IES312%E ©

ARATRDREEBAE X HHERA A
(B 32 F7 ) E4R £ 79 o

BRBHBAIN  RNMBHRERATET(T
B2 - AMBRREN _FT—0F
ZSATHhBEE=SHIETHE-

TESHTHRME

REAVBEHRREAZIESTBRS
IR - BRIER B R A - NE R B
EFEHERRARSTETERER -

21 REEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEFGTHEBE »

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mEEE @)

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except that other financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are stated at their fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
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RakzEBAEEEEABERLTE
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A3 E A ROR 3 3F BN B A 15 A9
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sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. e BERERAEAINRZER

e

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an HEr REERE ﬁ“ﬁf B B

ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised B EITERIR & fk TREE

in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects ZEAME H’}E AI—H FTihEHEY ER

only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods MARR: BIEIFE §'J (RPN

if the revision affects both current and future periods. REARE - BHERT S E1B8 7T R AR ES
EIRT

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEMEw

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (ontinued) 21 RBEEE )

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

o Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income”

° HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”

o HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests in other entities”

° HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

° Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities”

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of financial statements —
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present the items
of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to
profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met separately
from those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The
Group’s presentation of other comprehensive income in the
financial statements has been modified accordingly.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEFGTHEBE »

62

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and separate financial statements” relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12 “Consolidation
— Special purpose entities”. It introduces a single control model
to determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by
focusing on whether the entity has power over the investee,
exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and the ability to use its power to affect the amount
of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed
its accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has
control over an investee. The adoption did not change any of the
control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests in other entities”

(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea) 21 B EE »)
HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements” BB REERFE105 47
BB IHRE]
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HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the BBV BREERNF12R G E B
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in RINBAR - &L H - BE QA

subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated
structured entities. The disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are
generally more extensive than those previously required by the
respective standards. To the extent that the requirements are
applicable to the Group, the Group has provided these
disclosures in notes 9 and 10.

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. To the extent that the requirements are applicable
to the Group, the Group has provided these disclosures in note 3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # = =%

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Disclosures — Offsetting financia
assets and financial liabilities”

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. These new
disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments
that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32 “Financial
instruments: Presentation” and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that covers similar financial instruments and transactions,
irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32.

To the extent that the requirements are applicable to the Group,
the Group has provided these disclosures in note 3.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Consolidation

(@)  Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with note 2.8
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.8) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture (see note 2.2(b)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2.7), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # = ==
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2.7). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #&j

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in
a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see
note 2.8).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in the available-for-sale
investment reserve in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # = =%

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continueq)

©)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to equity. When a foreign operation
is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity
are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEFGTHEBE »

(continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment 24 ¥ -HWENZHE

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the carrying values of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have
been adopted are summarised as follows:

Leasehold improvements
HEBTFEE
Buildings held for own use carried at cost

BRAIEZFIEERET

Furniture and fixtures
HEAERKE

Office equipment
WRER
Computers

Bh

Motor vehicles

"

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # = =%

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continueq)

Gains or losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Assets under construction

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.7). Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on assets under construction until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and are available for
their intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into
use, the costs are transferred to items of property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated in note 2.4 above.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

@i the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.6

2.7

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2.7).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not available for
use are not subject to amortisation, and are tested at least
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business
combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEMEw

(continued)

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, 27 RMIBLAT HEQAT &

associates, joint ventures and non-financial assets

(continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units)
on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34 “Interim financial reporting” in
respect of the first six months of the financial period. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in the subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEFGTHEBE »

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments 28 R IA

74

Financial assets

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for assets
with maturities greater than twelve months after the balance
sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that
one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk exposures. Embedded derivatives are
separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if
the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and
the embedded derivates are not closely related, a separate
instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative
would meet the definition of a derivative, and the combined
instrument is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value; attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or
loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative
financial instruments are measured at fair value. When a
derivative financial instrument is held for trading, and is not
designated in a qualifying hedge-relationship, all changes in its
fair value are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # = =%

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8

2.9

Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.

Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using weighted average cost formula. The
cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEFGTHEBE »

(continued)

2.10 Trade and other receivables 210 E 5 Kk E fib fFE Y X8

76

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts. Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts
are recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The
amount of impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate where the effect of
discounting is material.

Impairment losses for trade receivables within trade and other
receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote are recorded using an allowance account. Where the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEMEw

(continued)
2.12 Share capital 212 B A
Ordinary shares AR

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Repurchase of shares

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly
attributable costs is recognised as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are presented as a deduction from total
equity.

2.13Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

2.14 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEFGTHEBE »

(continued)

2.15Income tax (continued) 2.15 PR3 BL ()

78

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax assets
are realised or the deferred tax liabilities are settled. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of
a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #&j

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

@

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution retirement plans,
the assets of which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The retirement plans are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the relevant
group companies. For employees in the PRC, the Group
participates in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the relevant local governments in the PRC.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continuea)

@

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained earnings).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEMEw

(continued)

2.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities QIT BRI ARERE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.18 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(@  Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEMEw

(continued)

2.18 Leases (continued) 218 & @)

82
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(b)  Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowings. The interest element of the lease payments is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of

financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

()

(i)

(i)

Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when products have been
delivered to the customers which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the products and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Service fees
Fees from service maintenance contracts are recognised
over the period of the contract.

Project revenue

Revenue on projects is recognised in the income statement
based on the percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred
to date to estimated total contract costs for the contract.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.21 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEMEw

(continued)
2.22 Related parties 2N EBEEANL
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is @ H‘EUTEBERT XALTHE
related to the Group if that person: MHRREKBEEAEREH
8
() has control or joint control over the Group; ()  FIEHISHEESIAE
;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEBBEATE

7758k

(i)  is a member of the key management personnel of iy AEAEEHNETEZEEA
the Group. Bz—-

()  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following o) EUTERMBRAT ZEE
conditions applies: HEAREBAREE:

)  The entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEERASZEHER
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary —SEBmKERA (A
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others). NaE - WBRAR KA

AMBRAAISEEEER
) o

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy ZEEAS TEME
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a BRARAEEDEHK
member of a Group of which the other entity is a BEEEKE AR A
member). ERalgAaELE M

ZE—ERALEEN
RERA) -

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MEZTBEHBER —F=
party. THEERE-

(v)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy EEELAF=-TEEH
other entity is an associate of the third entity. aEbE M5 —HE

AlB%ZE=H BB
/NI

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the V) ZERBANUASEEHHA
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity AEEEHENETEN
related to the Group. & B 2 M 2 M &% &Y Bt

& & FIEH &l o

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a Vi) ZERBX@QETFAHEDN
person identified in (a). A TIEHI s RS -

(viil A person identified in (a)() has significant influence (Vi) TE@))TE & FT B AY A
over the entity or is a member of the key THZERBEEATE
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent 7 B%E (K%
of the entity). BEENFAR)NETE

EREAB -

Close members of the family of a person are those family EATHEIRKREKE BT

members who may be expected to influence, or be HAgtRZERBR SR

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity. BZANTHZHZATEZE

MR BERK B °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # = =%

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”), the United States Dollar (“‘US$”), the Singapore
Dollar (“S$”), Thai Baht (“THB”) and Indonesian Rupiah (“RP”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to reduce foreign exchange risk. As at 31
December 2013, the Group had outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts with a net notional amount of
approximately HK$368,232,000 (2012: approximately
HK$697,236,000).

A 5% strengthening of the following currencies other than
the functional currencies of the Group's entities against the
HK$ at 31 December 2013 would have increased/
(decreased) the post-tax profit in the income statement of
the Group by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis as for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # = ==
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

BHERARBEERERAFE

(%)

31 B ERREZ®)

()

RMB AR
us$ ET

S$ T
THB B

RP EERE

A 5% weakening of the above currencies against the HK$
would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that
all other variables remain constant.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates and the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the cash and cash equivalents, details of
which have been disclosed in note 13. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
to its bank borrowings, details of which have been
disclosed in note 19. Borrowings carried at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2013, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$22,530,000 (2012:
HK$18,962,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

(©

Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The
exposures to these credit risks are closely monitored on an
ongoing basis by established credit policies and
procedures.

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited in various
financial institutions, which management believes are of
high quality. Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade receivables falls within the recorded
allowances.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s treasury
department maintains flexibility in funding by keeping credit
lines available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R AR BT RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEREKREERAFE

(continued)) (%)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HEREREZE®
(d)  Liquidity risk (continued) A BN R R ()
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s ERERBEHESREREE
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn facilities and cash and ERAEBRBHESHE (R
cash equivalents, on the basis of expected cash flows. The BARIBHEARE SRR
table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s SEEM MFEEN - TX
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on DEREEREANEEA
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the WBHTHEI>MEALBE
contractual maturity date. HIARMARER AR A
BaE-
Less than Between Between
1 year or 1 and 2and After
Total  ondemand 2 years 5years 5 years
—£R
A
CH EXN -FEME WEEEF  BBIF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TER TER
Group rE
At 31 December 2013 RZZE-=Z%+ZA=+-H
Bank borrowings RITEE 2,755,792 2,021,374 713,457 10,815 10,146

Adjustments to cash flow based 1R & & 5 25k i& 5 74
onlender'srighttodemand B &R EELFE

repayment - 24,566 (3,605) (10,815) (10,146)

2,755,792 2,045,940 709,852 - -

Finance lease liabilities REMEAE 449 191 258 - -

Trade and other payables BHREMEMAFE 5,125,347 5,125,347 - - -
At 31 December 2012 RZB-Zf+=ZA=t+-H

Bank borrowings RITEE 2,335,023 1,554,619 24,152 742,484 13,768

Adjustments to cash flow based 18 1 & 5 Z5kig ZUiE Fil &
onlender'sright todemand R &REELEFE

repayment - 28,207 (3,610) (10,829) (13,768)
2,335,023 1,682,826 20,542 731,655 -
Finance lease liabilties HEHESERE 710 564 146 - -
Trade and other payables ZHREMEMNTE 4,265,934 4,265,934 - - -
Company NG|
At 31 December 2013 R-B-=f+=-A=+-8H
Other payables and accruals £ /i J& 5 7038 I JE 51 2008 30 30 - - -
At 31 December 2012 R-ZZB-Zf+=ZA=t-H
Other payables and accruals -4t [ < 3078 % & 5T 2008 30 30 - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # = =%

— =+ -_fA=t+—RHItEE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEEKREERAFE
(continued)) (%)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EXREBE?
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard REBEBTEER 2 B # R BRA
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to SEBERNBELEE UAKRFEIR
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other HE R R A A ﬂ ﬁﬁ*g Bl & R
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to e - AR EEREREURKE
reduce the cost of capital. B o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group ﬁ”ﬂ#i:ﬂ”ﬁ$ B - AE K
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return ABRNTFTRENKRESEE M
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce REHEEAR BITHROIEE
debt. E
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/equity NEBEREBFHE HIELRER
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. BR - ZLLERZABEFHEBRIUAR $E
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and mE - ERFRRREE(BRRE
non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance BEEEABRAMTHRE RIE
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Equity is calculated as RBEE)RREESRBESEEDT
shown in the consolidated balance sheet. B oBREERAEEEBERM TG
The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31 TRAMAEBR _ZE—=F +
December 2013: —A=+—H®NE $ 1%
2013 2012
—E—=£ —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Total borrowings (Note 19) BEE@EE(MiF19) 2,698,573 2,266,597
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13) W BRe RIReEEBY(HiF13) (1,168,535) (936,009)
Net debt B FR 1,530,038 1,330,588
Total equity 48R A 3,620,400 3,234,682
Net debt/equity ratio B F R st K 0.42 0.41
BHERBRAT —=FFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R AR BT RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

() Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date on a recurring basis across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only
Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using
significant unobservable inputs

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEEKREERAFE

(continued)) (%)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 A EMEF @)
() Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) h URAFEFEZEEI
B (%)
Group
rE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-—ER F-ER FZE#R &&f

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FTER TR FERT FERT

At 31 December 2013 RZF—=F+=-A=+—8

Liabilities &

Forward foreign exchange REINES D

contracts - 40,724 - 40,724

At 31 December 2012 RZTE—=—F+=-RA=+—8

Liabilities =i

Forward foreign exchange EHENES K

contracts — 51,273 — 51,273
During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, there RBE-_T—=ZFKR_-_ZT— —4F
were no transfers between the levels of fair value hierarchy. +-—A=+—HIEEKXN A¥HE
B2 P AT A o

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts in Level 2 is E-_EBREHIES NN A TE

determined by discounting the contractual forward price and TR AR BEREB IR ES

deducting the current spot rate. The discount rate used is derived A8 *bfﬁ FREESE o FT{P A M AL IR X

from the relevant government yield curve as at the balance sheet WHEEANBEBRIFRGRMLE

date plus an adequate constant credit spread. SNMEAMEEEEaEEY -

(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other i) LAERF{EZYEZHK
than fair value BERaEs A AYE
The fair values of trade and other receivables, cash and B RHEMEKZE B4
cash equivalents, trade and other payables and borrowings LESEEY CHREM
are assumed to approximate their carrying amounts due to ENRBEBARBENRFE
the short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities. RS EEEmEEE B

REZREFEERBENIDH
HAMR &0 4 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEREKREERAFE

(continued)) (%)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AV {EMF @
(i)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other i) AFERFEY R Z B
than fair value (continued) EERBBEBZRAFEM@E
Certain financial assets and financial liabilities subject to EARBFREEELHERED
offsetting under netting arrangements are as follows: ETWHEERVBAGR

T

Gross amount Gross amount Net amount of

of recognised of recognised financial
financial liabilities  financial assets liabilities
[=F i =X
e EEE M EEAEE M EEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FExT FHER
Group &
31 December 2013 —E-=F
+t=A=+-—8H
Other payables and accruals H R A K
J& 5t 3R 5,670,185 (5,232,066) 438,119
31 December 2012 —E-—F
+=A=+—H
Other payables and accruals HERARIER
&Rt A 5,354,316 (5,056,096) 298,220
The gross amounts of the financial assets and financial MBEERVBEBERET
liabilittes are measured in accordance with relevant 1B 1% M SE2FT 5 9 48 B & 5t
accounting policies as set out in note 2. HEETE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@)

Estimated write-down of inventories to net

realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-downs
of inventories are recorded to the extent where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
realised.

The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and write-downs of inventories in the period in which
such estimate are changed.

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables. Provisions are applied to trade receivables to the
extent where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible.

The identification of impairment of trade receivables requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate are changed.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (see note 6).

4, EEGIHAE R A E

@)

%%‘fﬁ%—ﬂ‘vﬁﬂﬁéﬂ%ﬁ%‘

AEERBFEAERME ZFAG
WORTF E = AT #IRFE - W HIRAE
TEEHEBAEREER Z =M
ZEREY  AEBREAREFE
R A B

a8k ) Rk 78 e PR KB K fh R - fiW TR
HEMNNRAMT  BHERKS
FEZGTHREPHHZEFE
BRmEE & 17 B OBl ©

%ETT-%%FEH&?ME?BZE@

AEBERBHESHERIWFAELA
WEEREL 25 - LB SRR
REREFLEEG HHBRBTE
AR B BRI E 2 EHHIT

NEH AEBREARAE SR
FORMEL B -

A B 5 e WK IR R B B E R A
B fhate WBEBHBENRRE G
i AREZESYEZMGALRE
BHEAZEZRKFAREER
BRI

s AR A

AEBESFHRENF27MAE
ABRRASEEALGRE - REE
EBEUMARDSECREER

BEAEIET ZSHEREEH
fhst (RHIEES) °
BUEBRERAT —T-=FFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R AR BT RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(continued)

(©)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Estimated impairment of goodwill (continueq)

In assessing the value-in-use of the goodwill, management
considers changes in economic conditions and makes
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other
factors. Estimates of future cash flows are highly subjective and
judgements are based on the Group’s experience and knowledge
of operations. These estimates can be significantly impacted by
many factors including changes in business and economic
conditions, operating costs, inflation and competition.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

Property, Plant and Equipment

5. X MERR®E

Group &
Buildings held
Leasehold for own use Furniture Office Motor  Assets under
improvements  carried at cost and fixtures  equipment Computers vehicles  construction Total
HE BREKGEH KA rE
WEEE BEERETF REE BOERE B RE BE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET THT THT THT THT THT THT
As at 1 January 2012 R-Z-—%—-F—8
Cost 2% N 17,570 70,822 13,596 11,734 34,324 8,564 2787 159,397
Accumulated depreciation BHIE (6,463) (4,157) (2,795) (6,284) (8,712) (3,635) - (32,046)
Net book amount EHFE 11,107 66,665 10,801 5,450 25,612 4,929 2787 127,351
Year ended 31 December 2012 #HE_T—_4F
+tZA=+-RALEE
Opening net book amount FNEREE 11,107 66,665 10,801 5,450 25,612 4,929 2787 127,351
Additions RE 577 - 2,304 1,202 6,694 633 2,391 13,801
Transfer R 1,211 — 658 - 2,912 - (4,781) -
Disposals e - - (32) 62) 279 (37) (236) (646)
Depreciation bk (2,981) (1,469) (2,295) (1,696) (9,154) (1,759) - (19,354)
Exchange difference EXZSR 221 40 352 143 887 34 47) 1,630
Closing net book amount FREAFE 10,135 65,236 11,788 5,087 26,672 3,800 114 122,782
As at 31 December 2012 and WZE——F
1 January 2013 +ZA=+-HkK
—T-=%-A-H
Cost RAE 19,895 71,071 14,528 12,049 38,718 8,986 114 165,361
Accumulated depreciation ZEtE (9,760) (5,835) (2,740) (7,012) (12,046) (5,186) - (42,579)
Net book amount FHFE 10,135 65,236 11,788 5,087 26,672 3,800 114 122,782
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-T—=%
+-A=+—-BLLEE
Opening net book amount FNEEFE 10,135 65,236 11,788 5,037 26,672 3,800 114 122,782
Additions RE 467 - 686 476 9,126 2,202 1,934 14,911
Transfer o 1,730 - 50 - 43 - (1,823) -
Disposals HE - (471) (149) (163) (168) (341) - (1,292)
Depreciation bk (3,579) (1,450) (2,615) (1,857) (8,909) (1,595) - (19,805)
Exchange difference EREE 54 75 (411) (119) (496) 40 8 (849)
Closing net book amount EXREEEE 8,807 63,390 9,349 3,574 26,268 4,126 233 115747
As at 31 December 2013 R-Z-—=%
+-A=+—-8
Cost HAE 22,310 70,431 14,061 11,584 42,019 8,707 233 169,345
Accumulated depreciation ZEtE (13,503) (7,041) (4,712) (8,010) (15,751) (4,581) - (53,598)
Net book amount EHEFE 8,807 63,390 9,349 3,574 26,268 4,126 233 115747
The net book value of property, plant and equipment under finance MERESETZ2ME BEREEBER=

leases as at 31
HK$1,343,000).

December 2013 was HK$964,000 (2012:

T+ -_A=+—HNREFER

964,000/ (==

JL) °

BAZKRERLDF

— Z £ :1,343,000/8

TE-=ZFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R AR BT RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

5. Property, Plant and Equipment continueq 5. ME - -BERRKRE®
Company P/ N/NIE]

Motor vehicles

AE
HK$°000
FBT
As at 1 January 2012 RZE—-—=—F—H—H
Cost BN EN 1,998
Accumulated depreciation B2t E (1,066)
Net book amount BREFE 932
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE_ZT——+-_A=+—HL=FE
Opening net book amount FYIER®FE 932
Depreciation e (399)
Closing net book amount FRE@FE 533
As at 31 December 2012 and RZE—ZF+ZA=+—HBK
at 1 January 2013 —ET—=%—A—H
Cost PNEN 1,998
Accumulated depreciation REHITE (1,465)
Net book amount BRMEFE 533
Year ended 31 December 2013 HeE - ET—=F+-_A=+—HILHE
Opening net book amount FYIREFEE 533
Depreciation e (133)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 400
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H
Cost XA 1,998
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (1,598)
Net book amount BREFE 400
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Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

Goodwill 5=
Group

2013 2012
—2-=F —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Goodwill EES 333,052 339,756
As at 1 January n—HA—H 339,756 327,689
Exchange difference b W, =58 (6,704) 12,067
As at 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 333,052 339,756

The recoverable amount of each group of cash-generating units (“CGUs”)
to which goodwill is allocated is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. Cash flow projections for the purpose of the impairment
review are based on budgets prepared on the basis of assumptions
reflective of the prevailing market conditions. Key assumptions used for
value-in-use calculation for each group of CGUs include:

(@  Cash flows are projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(b)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rates included in the cash
flow projections range from 5.7% to 10% (2012: 7.4% to 10%).

(c)  Pre-tax discount rates as at 31 December 2013 which range
from 7.6% to 12.1% (2012: 7.6% to 14.4%) were applied in
determining the recoverable amount of the CGUs. The discount
rates used reflect the risk-free rates and the premiums for
specific risks relating to the business units in which the CGUs
relate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance
(historical data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes in
the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount of
goodwill.

ErEmEngERnsELEU([RE
ELBEMDMAKE S EIREREES
HEABTE RARBERISAETHESR
EBEADBRBEREERT R ZBE
BMNBEET SHEHRSELEENGTE
FREEMAXEREBE

@ HBREAERBEEREEXALT
FRBEEAR -

b) BERIRE RSB TE B WS
FEERNTIE57%E10% (=T —
ZETA%E10%) ©

© ZTE—=F+ZA=+—HHkK
RATBBE RN T76%E121% (=
T— 1 76%E14.4%) ©R1E
ETReELE umTW@%ﬁo
FT 8L 3R R I B 5 B 4 BB A R
MRSCEESENABEBEMD
R E R m (B o

BERTZRIXCHANEEREEEY
BAMBRERKBENFMGE  HRER
SRR BERB(ELBUR) REHH
BERMNBEHREL -

AEBMEEEMRE MEANLERER
BRTEEAREELNESY ETEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R AR BT RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries 7. RMBRARZRE

Company
N
2013 2012
—E-=5F —ZF2—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE T FET
Investments at cost A KA
— Shares listed in Singapore — g EmiEH, 1,223,714 1,218,903
— Unlisted investments, at cost —JELHEE LKA E 174,995 174,995
1,398,709 1,393,898

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are as RNZZE—=F+=-_A=1+—HZEEW
follows: BRARIZFBHOT :
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
SR BERITRES FEERE DL
8 X 3 i Bh FTEXEBRKEHE HE M EARFE BHE i
(Bt &)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding, 4 ordinary shares of 100% —
Islands British Virgin Islands US$1 each
BAEEEERAA RBREHES REER A TR AEEIET 100% -
ERERHS Z &R
Shenzhen VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT products RMB100,000,000 100% —
Electronic Co., Ltd. in the PRC
RINEBHERES Hh B NGEIETEo N SR A R #100,000,0007T 100% -
BRAA R E m
VST Computers (H.K.) Hong Kong Distribution of IT 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 — 100%
Limited products in Hong Kong each
BLEEM(FH) HE MEEDIHE 2REREENET - 100%
BRAA R Z &R

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

Investments in Subsidiaries continueq)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are as

follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. RMBRARZRE

RZF-=FF+-A=+—-BZXEM
BARAZHERT  (4)

Particulars of issued share

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
SRS BRITRE FEERE DL
= B 3 i Bh FTEXEBRKE LI T EARFE HE =
(Bt 77)
Chong Qing VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT USD10,000,000 - 100%
Technology products in the PRC
Development Co., Ltd
EERARARK B RABE S #HEAR 10,000,000 3 & - 100%
BERERDA RHLE
It mELEFERK PRC Distribution of IT RMB10,000,000 - 100%
HRAF products in the PRC
I RELFER Hh NGEIETEa SR A R #10,000,0007T - 100%
BERRQF R E m
ECS Holdings Limited Singapore Investment holding and 365,910,174 ordinary 89.84% -
distribution of IT shares of $$0.3088
products, provision of each
[T services and
enterprise systems
in Singapore
ERBEBRAR 03 R IEEFRE 365,910,174 % 89.84% -
2R D HE AR 9 f% 1 {E0.3088 %7 MM 3 7T
Em - REEMBR 2 EREk
AR 75 I 1 3 &R 4t
EC Sure Holdings Thailand Investment holding in 196,000 preferred shares —  89.75%
(Thailand) Co., Ltd Thailand with non-accumulative
dividends of Baht 1.25 per
share; and 204,000
ordinary shares of
Baht 1.25 per share
EC Sure Holdings ZH REEREREER 196,000 1% & i H B 1.25 5 # —  89.75%
(Thailand) Co., Ltd ZBEB - RBIERF
12 204,000 f% & f% H B 1.25
FHEBR
BHERERAT T —=FFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries continued) 7. RMBRARZKRE»
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are as RZE—=F+_A=1+—RAZFEMW
follows: (continued) BRARZFHBWOT : (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
M BRITRE FEREZEE L
= B3 i Bh FTEXEBRKEEHE TMEAFE HiZ 3
(Bt 77)
The Value Systems Thailand Provider of IT products 7,783,000 shares of 10 Baht —  89.84%
Co., Ltd and services for IT each
infrastructure in Thailand
The Value Systems EEl FHEAMBRER R 7,783,000 f% —  89.84%
Co., Ltd B A R BREE 10k &
BR 75 FE 7 Z B An
ECS Vietnam Company  Vietnam Trading of information and  US$100,000 —  89.84%
Limited communications

technology products
and services in Vietham

ECS Vietnam Company RBEREER KB 100,000% 7T —  89.84%
Limited MERERERERZS
ECS Computers (Asia)  Singapore Provider of IT products 18,600,000 ordinary shares of —  89.84%
Pte. Ltd and services for IT S$1 each
infrastructure
in Singapore
ECS Computers (Asia) 7 il 3 N E AR R EM R 13,600,000 8% —  80.84%
Pte. Ltd AR EWE G SREE NS T
BR 75 fE 7 2 EREk
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) Singapore Retail of IT products, 150,000 ordinary shares of —  89.84%
Pte Ltd IT equipment and S$1 each
accessories in
Singapore
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) %7 il # R MBI EAMBEE 150,000 % —  89.84%
Pte Ltd Ein - BB RE GREE1FHME T
REHZE 2 E AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries continued) 7. RMBRARZRE
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are as RZE—=F+ZA=+—HZXEW
follows: (continued) BARZEBWT - (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
M BRITRE FEERE DL
= B 3 i Bh FTEXEBRKE LI T EARFE HE =
(Bt 77)
Isan System Pte Ltd. Singapore Provision and distribution 2 ordinary shares of S$1 each —  89.84%

of IT products and
general trading of IT

equipment
in Singapore
Isan System Pte Ltd. 7N TR AN 3% 1R 45 K > 8 2% & A% EE 157 003 T —  89.84%
AAREERRKRE 2 AR
— BB RE
g5
ECS Enterprise Solutions Singapore Distribution of IT products 5,000,000 ordinary shares of —  89.84%
Pte Ltd and services for IT S$1 each
infrastructure in
Singapore
ECS Enterprise Solutions 37 il 3 PR N3 9 85 & s LR 5,000,000 A% —  89.84%
Pte Ltd EmRkEEEMEK FREEFNE T
ECWE 3R it AR 15 2 E AR
ECS Technology (China) Hong Kong Investment holding, 11,500,000 ordinary shares of —  89.84%
Limited provider of IT products HK$1 each

and services for
IT infrastructure

in Hong Kong
ECS Technology (China) & % WEER - BBEM 11,500,000 & —  89.84%
Limited B ERREARE EREE1BET

ERERR RS e Z &

ECS Technology PRC Provider of IT products US$10,000,000 —  89.84%
(Guangzhou) and services for IT
Company Limited infrastructure in the PRC

ECS Technology e FEEMBHRER R 10,000,000 7T —  89.84%
(Guangzhou) BB A
Company Limited AR 75 1 P& 7

BAZRERQIA —T-=FF%H 101



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries continued) 7. RMBRARZKRE»
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are as RZE—=F+_A=1+—RAZFEMW
follows: (continued) BRARZFHBWOT : (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued share interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
M BRITRE FEERE DL
= B3 i Bh FTEXEBRKEEHE M EARFE HE =
(Bt 77)
ECS Technology PRC Provider of IT products US$1,282,000 —  89.84%
Company Limited and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS Technology HE PEEMBHREMR R 1,282,000 7T —  89.84%
Company Limited BB EREE
BR 75 1 e 7
ECS (Shanghai) PRC Provider of IT products US$25,000,000 —  89.84%
Management Co., Ltd and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS (Shanghai) t B E R E 25,000,000 T —  89.84%
Management Co., Ltd B R E TR
BR 75 1 e 7
ECS China Technology = PRC Provider of IT products US$15,000,000 —  89.84%
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS China Technology ~ B FRHROE 15,000,000 3 & —  89.84%
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd BB AR
BR 7% e 7S
ECS Beijing Chuang PRC Provider of IT products US$1,000,000 —  89.84%
Yue Technology and services for IT
Co., Ltd infrastructure in the PRC
ECS Beijing Chuang H FEEMBHRER R 1,000,000% 7T —  89.84%
Yue Technology AR R EWEE
Co., Ltd AR 75 it FE 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

Investments in Subsidiaries continueq)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are as

follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. RMBRARZRE @

R_E—=ZF+—=

A=+—HzxX2H

BRAG BN (&)

Particulars of issued share

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
HEMER BBITRAR FEEEE L
£18 X 3L i B FTEEBERKZE Y TMEARFE HiE 3
(K3 &t)
EIT Info-tech Limited Hong Kong Provider of IT products 1 ordinary share of —  89.84%
and services for IT US$5,000,000
infrastructure in
Hong Kong
EIT Info-tech Limited BB BEEARBER K 1 A% /1 {8 5,000,000 3 7T —  89.84%
BB ER R 2 E R
RR 75 FE 7
ECS Technology (HK) Hong Kong Provider of IT products 10 ordinary shares of —  89.84%
Co., Limited and services for IT US$1,000,000 each
infrastructure in
Hong Kong
ECS Technology (HK)  && BEBEMBRER R 10 A% & i T & 1,000,000 %€ 7T —  80.84%
Co., Limited AR BRI 2 E AR
AR 75 1t FE 7
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd Singapore Distributor of IT products 2,524,785 ordinary shares, —  89.84%
in Singapore issued and paid up
capital: US$1,615,392
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd 0 TN & FRH R E 2,524,785 % B 81T & —  80.84%
I R R AR
1,615,392% ¢
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distributor of IT products 100,000 ordinary shares of —  89.84%
in Indonesia US$1 each
PT ECS Indo Jaya ENfE EIE BB EMm 100,000 & IR EE1E T —  89.84%
DHEE 2 EER
ECS Infocom (Phils) Singapore Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of —  89.84%
Pte. Ltd in Singapore S$1 each
ECS Infocom (Phils) N RETMEHEREER 2RESREEIFTNET —  89.84%
Pte. Ltd 2 E AR
ECS Chongging PRC Electronic settlement US$10,000,000 —  89.84%
Marketing & payment business centre and
Co., Ltd provider of IT products
and services of IT
infrastructure in PRC
ECS Chongging H REEFAEERBF L 10,000,000% 7T —  80.84%
Marketing & payment REMBFRERR
Co., Ltd BB ER R
AR 75 £t FE 7
Note: Btaz -

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established in the

PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

BRPEKIOMBAR RIIEEE X
S REMB AR ARBRAE -

BAZKRERLDF

TE-=ZFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R AR BT RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

8. Amount Due to a Subsidiary
The amount due to a subsidiary of HK$297,830,000 (2012:

HK$230,695,000) is unsecured, interest-free, denominated in HK$ and
is repayable on demand.

9. Interest in Associates

FE {3 M B8 X B 7R E

JiE& 1~ B B A 7] 3% 18 297,830,000/% JT (=
T — — 4F : 230,695,000 7T ) B £ K 3
BECUBTHERBEREREEE -

REE QRN ER

Group

REM
Pl K]
—E—=
HK$’000
THET

69,376
3,481

72,857

242,610

315,467

Unlisted Bl

Share of net assets DIEFEE

Loan to an associate mEE RN ER
Listed outside Hong Kong EEUNMBE LT
Share of net assets DIEFEE

Market value of listed shares EHRGHTE

205,088

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2013

2012

HK$'000
TAT

66,406
3,493

69,899

240,273
310,172

194,732



9.

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # = =%

Interest in Associates (continueq)

The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and is unsecured,

interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year.

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

NM%tomememmsmmmems@mmmwm

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

— =+ -_fA=t+—RHItEE

9. REBERTANERw

BYHEAANERAETHE LR
EEAR RERTEHAN-FAKE -

R-Z2-—=F+-A=+-RA0BEA

AHENT :
Country of Particulars of issued Equity interest held by
Name incorporation  Principal activities shares held the Group
8 HMELIBER ETEEH FEERTROFE AEBFRFEZRE
2012
—_EF—=
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc  Philippines Distribution of IT products 3,097,055 ordinary 49.99%
shares of Peso
100 each
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc ~ 3E2 & B FRHRE M 3,097,055 %
BREAE10ER
2 &Rk
ECS ICT Berhad Malaysia Provision of information 180,000,000 ordinary 1%
technology shares of RMO0.5 each
and services for
[T infrastructure in
Malaysia
ECSICT Berhad BRA D BRI AR 180,000,000 %
ERREEARM R SREBECSHIERE
AR 75 2 &Rk

Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial associates in the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed above. Aggregate
financial information (the Group’s share) of these associates is as

follows:

ZEGAVBRRT IS IIFERNHZ
RAZBEEEREXRE - AEED

Profit and total comprehensive income

m A M2 E WA B R

HZEBEARZABHEVBERD
T
Group
rE
2013 2012
—_E-=fF —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
33,102 36,304
BHERERAT —=FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # = ==

10. Interest in a Joint Venture

—=#+-_A=+—RHIEE

100 REEENER

Group
rE
2013 2012
Sp=2 —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Unlisted FEETm
Share of net assets NEFEE 23,041 -
Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2013 are as follows: RZE—=F+ZA=+—HHE
ERABEWT
Country of Particulars of registered Equity interest held by
Name incorporation Principal activities capital the Group
=x AMRIER FTEXEH AMERFE rEBEFRF2RE
2012
Bozhou Botong PRC Research and RMB55,000,000 —
Supply Chain development, production
Co., Ltd and sale of smartphones
and computer peripheral
products
sMmEAMERE PE e EERIEEER ARY55000,0007T -

BRAF

FRRBHABER

Bozhou Botong Supply Chain Co., Ltd is the only joint venture in which
the Group participates. Aggregate financial information (Group's share)
of this immaterial joint venture is as follows:

EMNTEBEERERARNR/AEESR
HEBOE - —HKAELEX - AKED

EZFEREGERE LA RAEUTE
FHAREEEE) AT :

Group
rEH

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx FAET

Loss and total comprehensive income

&5 18 Ko 22 T U A 4B R

(188)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

1. BEZREMEWRRKIE

Group Company
rE /N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—_ZE—= —E—-_%F —E—= —ET—=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
THET FHET THERT THET

11. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables, net B 5 eI IEF 5,816,260 4,547,481
Other receivables and H SR IE K

prepayments 78 1+ 3E 1,034,410 778,558 309
Deferred expenses (Note 17(d)) JEE 5 5z (K7t 17(c)) 22,122 33,830

6,872,792 5,359,869
R+ FE B HE R R 32

(Htz£17(d))

Less: Non-current deferred
expenses (Note 17(d))

(11,488) (19,432)
6,861,304 5,340,437

AEBRTE=ZNEPZEEHNF7

The Group grants credit period to third party customers ranging from 7

to 150 days, which may be extended for selected customers
depending on their trade volume and settlement history with the Group.
The ageing analysis of net trade receivables by invoice date is as

=500 MEMNEFP ZEEHA FIE
R RIREEAEHAZXZFERNAK
LEME - EZEUWKBFRLERA

follows: HOMAERERAT ¢

Group

%2
2013 2012

—E—= —_F—=

HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
0-30 days 0&30H 3,357,707 2,776,194
31-60 days 31260H 1,413,627 1,143,077
61-90 days 61290H 422,456 231,655
Over 90 days @0 H 622,470 396,555
5,816,260 4,547,481

BHERERAA —T-=FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

11. Trade and Other Receivables continueo) N ESZRHEMEBEVRRKE
As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of HK$959,073,000 (2012: RZE—=F+ZRA=+—H B2
HK$889,053,000), which were fully performing, were past due but not & 178 B 5 J& W 3R 78 959,073,000/ 7T
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for —F — — 4 : 889,053,000/8 yr) & 1 HA
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these BERBE ZERBHZEBIYIRF,E
trade receivables by due date is as follows: B FEVELHENLE - ZEESH

U IR F BB M RRNT -

Group
rE
2013 2012
—_E—= —E—-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FiET
0-30 days 0% 30H 546,250 552,892
31-60 days 31260H 179,923 180,997
61-90 days 61290H 90,811 60,630
Over 90 days HBi#®o0H 142,089 94,534
959,073 889,053
As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of HK$241,369,000 (2012: RZE-—Z=F+ZA=+—H BH5E
HK$196,707,000) were impaired and full provision has been made. The U FX 18 241,369,0008 L (—ZF — = F ¢
ageing analysis of these receivables by invoice date is as follows: 196,707,000 7)) E R E - W EEH 2
HEH ZERWHFBEREZEHASM
AR T -

2013 2012

—E—= —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TET
0-90 days 0%&90H 2,144 8,443
Over 90 days HBiBo0H 239,225 188,264
241,369 196,707
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

: 5z +
11. Trade and Other Receivables continueq N ESZREMERIRE S
Movements on the provision for trade receivables are as follows: B RWHRIBRENZSOT
Group
rE
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FiE T
At 1 January n—HA—H 196,707 148,280
Provision B 58,652 46,910
Receivables written off during the year FARHEE AT Y@
as uncollectible Y fE R KB (15,893) (1,457)
Exchange difference PEN =% 1,903 2,974
At 31 December R+—_A=+—8 241,369 196,707
All of the above provision relates to trade receivables that were FrA Ll BEHREERNEE RS LER
individually determined to be impaired. BENESERFEEA-
The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past EOHIBENE S REMERIIED
due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to historical FEEEEN2ERZEHFNBEENE
information about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties ERAH - BAERSGEFRBETEERKR
have not had significant defaults in the past. EH o
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were denominated B REMBRFIBERENLTNIEE
in the following currencies: FTE :
Group Company
rE N
2013 2013 2012
—E—= = —E—= —_EF—=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
TERT FAT FTHERT FHET

HK$ BT 3,827
RMB AR 4,160,237 2,614,441

us$ EV 1,495,047 1,558,636 —
S$ oo 328,526 274,596 —
THB =k 694,936 784,982 —

RP Elfef& 178,731 103,663

6,861,304 5,340,437

BAZRERQIA —T-=FF%H 109
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12. Inventories 12. 78
Group
&
2013 2012
—E—= —_F—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Inventories on hand held for re-sale BEEHEEFEFE 2,139,726 2,205,779
Inventories-in-transit EEhEE 504,724 517,324
2,644,450 2,723,103
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is R ERST2EESB DS AN
shown in note 22. 22 o
13. Cash and Cash Equivalents 13. BERHEESEZEY
Group Company
AEE /N

2013 2012 2013 2012
—ZE—= —E-—4F —E—=5F —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FE&TT FHET FiET
Cash at bank and in hand ROTEREEFRS 1,064,546 924,001 8,774
Short-term bank deposits MERITER
(Note a) (Ktita)

Cash and cash equivalents ReERBLEEY

103,989 12,008

1,168,535 936,009
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

13. Cash and Cash Equivalents continueq 13 RHERBEEEED »
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were denominated RekReEEWEEENATIEE
in the following currencies: & :
Group Company
rEEH PN

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E2—= —E—_4F —E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET TERT FHET

HK$ BT 16,800 7,645 2,981

RMB (Note b) AR (K7 2Eb) 673,924 425,281 -
US$ E7 336,739 342,898 111
S$ T 90,946 110,820 958
THB £l N 31,539 30,793 —

RP Hiek 18,587 18,572 —
1,168,535 936,009

Notes: Bfa -

(@)  The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 1.00% (2012: @ BEHETERZEREFHEE1.00%
1.00%) per annum. These deposits have an average maturity of 9.44 days —E-ZF:1.00%)c ZEFERZF
(2012: 9.08 days). ¥ F A B9.448 (=T — =4 : 9.08

H) -

(o)  The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in RMB are ) ATEBUARBHEZRITEHET
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB R GERARPREZIRIT - HBZEUA
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds REGFEZERAINERBEESED
out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange FEEETHREBRERERZINEE
control promulgated by the government of the PRC. 48 8l &2 48 01

14. Share Capital 14, B
2013 2012
—_EF—= —_E—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FAET
Authorised: SETE -
2,000,000,000 (2012: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,000 (= &E — 4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 2,000,000,000) & & f%
HEIB Lz LB 200,000 200,000
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NS

EETRBRZEBR:

14 Share Capltal (continued) 14

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

2013

—s-=

2012
B F

Number of issued
ordinary shares of

Number of issued
ordinary shares of

112

HK$0.1 each  Par value HK$0.1 each Par value
SREE0.1ET SREE0IETT
ZERITEER ZEBETEBER
HE H{E R H 1B
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 1,240,036,665 124,004 1,240,656,665 124,066
Bonus issue (Note a) AN EE1T (M ata) 248,007,333 24,800 — —
Share options exercised BT8R E
(Note b) (Bt7tb) 6,000,000 600 - -
Repurchase of own shares B B AR & % {5 = (620,000) 62)
At 31 December ®n+=-—A=+—8 1,494,043,998 149,404 1,240,036,665 124,004
Notes:
(@) Bonus issue of shares (a) ATRREETT
By an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting on 23 BER_ZE—=ZFRA-t+=ZH2Z2K
May 2013, the issued share capital was increased by way of a bonus RBEFARE BB BBRER OF
issue by applying HK$4,528,000 and HK$20,272,000 charged to the TTRA A AT B 317 05 2B 0 - T3 05 /3 8
capital redemption reserve and share premium account respectively as BER-_E—=F~"AtBEHET
payment in full for 248,007,333 shares at par of HK$0.1 each, on the P& B 17 18 3 M ASHT A 2 48 - B A 99 5
basis of two new shares for every ten shares held on 7 June 2013. These BEEANEDFERBDEEENRZ
shares rank pasi passu with the existing ordinary shares in all respects. 4,628,0007% 7T }220,272,0007% 7T * & &
1% T 18 X 1248,007,333 % & Ak E 1H0.1
BILZBG - ZEROAEREHEER
BEBRAEBHERMA -
()  Shares issued under share option scheme ) IREBEREEIZTRNG

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 14 November 2013, options were exercised to subscribe for 6,000,000
ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of HK$2,700,000 of
which HK$600,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of
HK$2,100,000 were credited to the share premium account.
HK$1,978,000 has been transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with policy set out in 2.16(d).

Annual Report 2013

RZE—=F+—A+MB - BRiEE
1718 A & A {E2,700,00078 7T R B A A
716,000,000 A% & 7@ % - H 600,000 %
JCET AR AR - T #2 882,100,000 JT &t
A B 15 34 B BR © 1,978,000 7T 2 1R #
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

14. Share Capital continueq)

Notes: (continued)

(©

Repurchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company repurchased its
own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

14, B2 )

st - (&)

()

BB E A 5B

RBEZET——-F+=ZA=+—H1
FE - AR B FTIE R E AR R G
NN

Number of Aggregate

ordinary shares Highest price Lowest price purchase

Month of repurchase repurchased paid per share paid per share price paid
g e =X g1

BmE A5 ZEREA BREBESER EREEER HBEER
HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

January 2012 —E——%—A 620,000 1.06 0.97 631,420

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.
Pursuant to Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands, an amount
equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled of HK$62,000 was
transferred from retained eamings to the capital redemption reserve. The
premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of HK$569,000 was charged
to retained earnings.

EBERGOEWEN  MARRMNE
TRABHEEZERD O EE T U
B BEBEFAESBESAREEESR)
LHREFHERMEE62,0007%8 TR &5
ERARBBEREERELHE -
8 B 5 & B 15 4 {8 569,0007%8 T E B
REB BTG -

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the balance sheet date 0 REZBRBHRRITE 2 ERESH
Exercise price 2013 2012
Exercise period 1THEH TEE —B-=F —B-—=F
HK$
BT
—TENFZAZTHE
20 February 2009 to 19 February 2019 —E-NAF-_A+AhH 0.45 — 6,000,000*
—E-—=fZA+tRZE
17 February 2013 to 16 February 2021 B —F-A+KH 2.227 12,240,000 12,240,000*
—T—=f=-AZ+=HZ%
23 March 2013 to 22 March 2021 —E-_—F=A=-+=H 2.028 5,400,000 5,640,000*

* Adjusted for the bonus shares in 2013

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company. Further details of these options are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

© BRSE-SEZARELAE

BNEREARTHEAREARQF
—REBRZERN o TR E—
FHBHNPIBRRM L5

BAZRERQIA —T-=FF%H
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Share option scheme of the Company

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 17 April 2002 whereby the Directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees (including both
full time and part time employees, and Executive Directors), Non-
executive Directors, suppliers, customers and other corporations
or individuals that provide support to the Group (as defined in the
share option scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares
of the Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the share option scheme
may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
The subscription price is determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors and will not be less than the higher of () the nominal
value of the Company’s ordinary shares; (i) the closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; and (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer. The options vest ranging from O to 2 years from the
date of grant as determined by the Directors and are then
exercisable within a period of ten years including the vesting
period, if any. Each share option gives the holders the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

No share options were granted during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.

Annual Report 2013
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15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments continueq)

(@)

Share option scheme of the Company (continued)

() The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows,
whereby all options exercised were settled by physical
delivery of shares during the year ended 31 December

2013:
Outstanding ~ Lapsed  Adjusted  Exercise
asat during bonus during
Date of grant 1 January 2013 the year shares  the year
R--Z%
-B-B  RER RER
RHAH Ei(d 5% BARRE %
Directors 23
20 February 2009 —TEAF-A=1R 5,000,000 — 1,000,000 (6,000,000)
23 March 2011 —Z-—-f=f-1=H 4,700,000 (200,000 900,000
Employees EE
17 February 2011 “F-—5-f++tH 10,200,000 — 2,040,000

19,900,000 (200,000 3,940,000 (6,000,000)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year was HK$1.57
(2012: not applicable).

= —F =

F_E-—ZHE+_A=1+—HILFE

15. LR < F 2w 4

FRIE (@)

@@ ANANEEBRESE e

Outstanding
asat
31 December
2013

5,400,000

12,240,000

17,640,000

M

Exercisable
asat

31 December
2013
R=-=%
t=A=t-H
TFIE

5,400,000

12,240,000

17,640,000

AT B 2 G R &
Bt - BE-ZT—-—=F+=
A=+—BIE¥E A
1T BB M 19 A B ) A9 BX

4

Exercise Contractual ~ Remaining
price Vesting termof  contractual
(HKS) conditions options life

(igcd| BRE g
(&) ROEH  RNER

Nl 10years N/A

& 10% &R

2 years from 10years  7.23 years
date of grant

BRYAH 108 7.23%
Eitof

2 years from 10years  7.14 years
date of grant

BRYAH 10§ 7145
Eitof

FRETE BB ERTTE A
B2 HEF R AE R1.57H8
T(ZF—ZF :T@EM) -

BHERERAA —T-=FFRH 115



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R AR BT RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments continvesy 15 AR X2 R & E

E =
MKE @)
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continued) @ AATBRESS @
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants for the year ended iy WUTABEZZ—ZF+=
31 December 2012 are as follows: A=+—BLEFEREZK
R M
Outstanding Exercisable
Lapsed asat asat  Exercise Contractual ~ Remaining
Outstanding as at during 31 December 31 December price Vesting termof  contractual
Date of grant 1 January 2012 the year 2012 2012 (HKS) conditions options life
RZE—Z% R-ZZE——% RZIT-—_%F
—-A—-H REXN +ZA=+—-8 +tZA=+—H T6RE e RS
KHAH W ARITEE ¥ W AT AFTE (Bm) HEBEN A0FH A0FH
Directors EE
20 February 2009 —TTNE
—B=-tH 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.54 Nil 10years  6.14 years
& 106 .14
23 March 2011 T 4,700,000 - 4,700,000 - 2.434 2 years 10years  8.23 years
ZA=-+=H from date
of grant
BRHEAH
it 106 8.23%
Employees =]
17 February 2011 —Z——% 10,400,000 (200,000) 10,200,000 - 2.672 2 years 10years  8.14 years
ZAttH from date
of grant
B A H
EitofF 106 8144

20,100,000 (200,000) 19,900,000 5,000,000
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15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments continueq)

(b)

Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS
Holdings Limited (“ECS”)

The Company’s subsidiary, ECS, has a share option scheme, the
ECS Share Option Scheme Il (“Scheme II”), which was adopted
on 13 December 2000 whereby the Directors of ECS are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite ECS’s employees and
Directors, including Non-executive Directors of ECS and its
subsidiaries (‘ECS Group”) to take up options to subscribe for
shares of ECS. The subscription price is determined by the
ECS’s Board of Directors and is set either at (i) a price equal to
the average of the last dealt price of ECS’s share for the three
consecutive trading days immediately preceding the grant of the
option (i) a discount to the market price not exceeding 20% of
the market price in respect of that option. Each share option
gives the holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
ECS. The options vest after one year from the date of grant and
are then exercisable at any time after the first anniversary of the
grant date and in the case of option with exercise price set at a
discount, at any time after the second anniversary of date of
grant. Options granted to employees and Executive Directors are
exercisable up to the tenth anniversary of date of grant and those
granted to Non-executive Directors are exercisable up to the fifth
anniversary of the date of grant. The scheme will continue to be
in force at the discretion of the compensation committee of ECS,
subject to a maximum period of ten years commencing 13
December 2000.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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— =+ -_fA=t+—RHItEE

15. LAHQ@S'ZﬁZ’fEﬁ“ﬁm

FRIE )

(b)

Bﬁ%’& AERBERERA
o (iji,mﬂﬁj) HY B8 IR 7

KRB EBRARERNMKRE —
AR _ZFZTTEF+_A+=ZBK

MR RS B - EAAR B AR
SEINE SN - e - EARRE

EEEEENBREIENRRZ
BEREE(BEENBRREK
BRAR([EARREE]) 2 FHTT
ER)EMBRE URBELIN
Rk RBEOERNMKRZE
EEET AERNEENERR
HEREASM=EZEXSA
EARMEBROOFEHRERRIE
o (i) /5 8 8 P4 T (B O 3T 2B T R
BTEN20% - FHBRESET
FEARBE -BREANKETAER
ZHEN - BRI A RS —
FRERE MERURELAH—
BFERBERITE  WEREZTE
BEPTEE - AR R L AW
BFRERTE X TEERNT
EENERBUNREERLAS
TRFR/LETE METIHFATE
FNEBEREIREERLBASA
BERIEITE - R BB IRENH
REMEZESMIBEREEELER
H-FTEEEFT_AT=ZHAER
ERHETF-
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15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments contiveqy  15. L,L BTt

M (@)
(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS (b) Bﬁ BARERBEAERL
Holdings Limited (“ECS”) (continued) A(ERBEDWERE
n-l_ J (&)
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants for the year ended () AUTABEE-—ZE—Z=ZF+=
31 December 2013 are as follows: A=+—HBLEFERLZ K
R AE
Outstanding  Transferred Lapsed  Outstanding at Exercisable at Exercise Contractual Remaining
at 1 January during during 31 December 31 December price Vesting term of contractual
Date of grant the year the year 2013 (S8)  conditions options life
RER RER fTEE BRE Fer
REASH 1] 53X T Gihgx) BEKGE SHEH ANEH
Directors gz
150ctober 2010  —E—T& 1,900,000  (700,000)  (200,000) 300,000 300,000 ! 1year 5-10years 1.8t06.8
+ATEA from date years
of grant
BREAH 5Z10F 18ZF68F
BH1E
Employees EEREM
and other
15 October 2010 —2-%% 10,150,000 700,000 (600,000) 10,250,000 10,250,000 I 1year 5-10years 1.8t06.8
+ATEA from date years

of grant
BRIEAS 5Z10F 18%68%
BiE

12,050,000 (1,500,000) 10,550,000 10,550,000
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15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments continvesy  15. AR X 2 = &

I %)
(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS b KMBAREABEAERA

Holdings Limited (“ECS”) (continued) A(ERBEDWERE

=t 8l )

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, (i) T ABEHZERZENE-
whereby all options exercised were settled by physical Bl BE-ZE——-F+=
delivery of shares during the year ended 31 December A=+—BLEE FMBE
2012: 1118 BB AR 19 DA B W) 2 A4 R

NHEE -
Outstandingat ~ Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at Exercisable at Exercise Contractual  Remaining
1 January during during 31 December 31 December price Vesting term of  contractual
Date of grant 2012 the year the year 2012 2012 (8$)  conditions options life
RZE-_% RZZE-—% HRIZ--F
—AR—8 RER REN +TZA=+—H tZA=+—-H TfE B H#en

Kt B 8 W RATEE (g KM W ARITIE AFaE Fmkr) BEGKE AOFH FH

Directors 3

150ctober 2010 —Z—Z4F 1,900,000 - - 1,900,000 1,900,000 0.55 1 year 5-10 2810

+TATRA from date of years 7.8 years

grant
BREBH 5210 28%F78F

RE1EF

Employees (3]

150ctober 2010 —Z—Z4F 10,950,000 (650,000 (250,000) 10,150,000 10,150,000 0.55 1 year 5-10 28to
+At+RA from date of years 7.8 years

grant
BREBH 5Z10F 28F78F

RE1F

12,850,000  (650,000)  (250,000) 12,050,000 12,050,000

BHERERAA —T-=FFRH 119
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See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the nature and

purpose of reserves.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2013

FHREEILEERAEN B

RMFEE -

16. Reserves 16. f# &
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each AREBBERRSEXNDNFYRERE
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the BHREHEHNRGEESEHER -AFE
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Detalils of the changes in RBTFERARASRERDOFEIR
the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning FREFH2HBRINDOT :
and the end of the current and prior years are set out below:
Company PN
Capital
Share redemption Capital Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
BRGEE EXBEERE BERRE RERBA Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHx FEx T FExT FET
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(M &%) (B &%) (B 5%)
Balance at 1 January 2012 KNZIE—ZF
— A —B®&EH 774,195 4,466 10,564 310,325 1,099,550
Profit and total comprehensive F A A &
income for the year e K — - - 31,128 31,128
Dividend paid B R 2 - - - (99,203) (99,203)
Equity-settled share-based ARG 9 A5 2
payments RREERE - - 10,228 - 10,228
Repurchase of own shares BE B 7R & i 1
— Par value paid —BEffEE - - - - -
— Premium paid —BffaE — — — (569) (569)
— Transfer between reserves — EEEE R - 62 - (62) -
Balance as at 31 December 2012 A - & — — 4
+ZA=+—H
B 45 88 774,195 4,528 20,792 241,619 1,041,134
Balance at 1 January 2013 R-ZZE—=F
— R — B8 774,195 4,528 20,792 241,619 1,041,134
Profit and total comprehensive F R K&
income for the year FERABE — - - 40,583 40,583
Dividend paid ERRE - - — (99,208) (99,203)
Equity-settled share-based AR 22
payments A ERE — - 1,114 - 1,114
Bonus issue 4P BETT (20,272) (4,528) - - (24,800)
Share options exercised BT ERE 4,078 — (1,978) — 2,100
Balance as at 31 December 2013 A - ZT— =4
+=-A=+—H
B 45 85 758,001 — 19,928 182,999 960,928
Note: Btaz -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

17. Trade and Other Payables

17 EZREMENRIE

Group
rE

Company

AT

2013 2012 2013 2012
—_=E—= —E—-_%F —Eg—= s

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FExT FET FE& T FHET

Trade payables 5 ENFIR 4,671,792
Other payables and accruals E A A K

FEH FR 1B 438,119
Deferred income (Note(d) EIEW A () 30,092

5,140,003
B+ FE B R RE YA

Less: non-current deferred

income (Note(d)) (K&t () (14,656) (24,231)
5,125,347 4,265,934
(@  The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 (@

days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables by
invoice date is as follows:

3,948,459 -

298,220 30 30
43,486 =

4,290,165 30

AEEBZHEBRERAAERRL 2
ZEHNFI0E0H B FJEN
REBEBEZAHESMZERNOT

0-60 days
Over 60 days

0Z60H
#3860 H

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—_Eg—= —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
4,567,897 3,874,099
103,895 74,360
4,671,792 3,948,459

BAZRERDT

TE-=ZFFR
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5% +

17. Trade and Other Payables continued) 17 EZREMENRE @

(o)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables (by invoice b)) BSEREMEMFIEGREZAH)
date) were denominated in the following currencies: BREEMN T EE,ETE
Group Company
wE ¥ NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= T4 —E—= —E=—=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHEx FHET FExT FHET
HK$ BT 12,934 9,748 30
RMB AR 2,399,682 1,629,880 —
us$ ET 2,217,267 1,893,726 —
S3$ o T 202,202 248,652 —
THB TR 267,250 442,493 —
RP HE&E 26,012 41,435 _
5,125,347 4,265,934 30
() Included in other payables and accruals is an amount ) HtENKREREFRERES
HK$45,200,000 (2012: HK$51,273,000) which relates to forward 78 i HE NE & 49 ) & B8 45,200,000
foreign exchange contracts. The net notional amount of forward B (= F — = F :51,273,000%5
foreign exchange contracts has been disclosed in note 3.1(a). T BENNEE NN FEESE
ERMES A EE -
(d) Deferred income and expenses relate to fees billed/paid in d BELERARAZERBREAL
advance on service maintenance contracts. MIBEFRAERE STNERERE-
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18. Deferred Taxation 18. IEFE B 1H
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under BEHRBNEEEEIREFEEES2H
the liability method. FTE -
Movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: ELEMBEEE/(BE)FHEEHNT
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—_E-—=5 —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE R FAT
At 1 January Hn—A—H 26,122 22,619
Credited to the consolidated income statement SFAGZEERER
(Note 24) (Htat24) (8,288) 3,170
Exchange difference X ZE5 (559) 333
At 31 December R+—-_A=+—H 17,275 26,122
Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FANREHREEERBEBEAFEZ SN
year are as follows: T
Group
AEE
2013 2012
Deferred tax assets — EERIEEE— —EF—= —_EF—=
Inventories and trade receivables provisions FERE S EWFERE HK$’000 HK$’000
TE R FAET
At 1 January Hn—AH—H 55,735 49,622
Credited to the consolidated income statement SFAGZEBERER (409) 5,677

Exchange difference ME W =& (748) 436

At 31 December Rt+-—_A=+—H 54,578 55,735

BAZRERQIA —T-=FF%H 123
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18. Deferred Taxation continveq) 18. IEE B 1H (&)
Group
TEE
2013 2012
Deferred tax liabilities — FEEHEEE— —E—=f T4
Accelerated tax depreciation and others IEERBIEITE R E A HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FiET
At 1 January n—H—H (29,613) (27,003)
Charged to the consolidated income statement 75/\ mEBETRNR (7,879) (2,507)
Exchange difference e =% 189 (108)
At 31 December R+—-_A=+—H (37,303) (29,613)
Included in “others” are deferred tax liabilities recognised in respect of [HM Bt AR ABEIEERE B
undistributed profits of foreign investment enterprises in the PRC of E¥ENWARD R afERNELTEHRIEEE
HK$27,102,000 (2012: HK$19,179,000). 27,102,000 xt( = T — = #F:
19,179,000/ 7T) °
H and
19. Borrowings 19. 8 &
Group
TEE
2013 2012
=Ehd== —_EF—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FiET
Non-current ERE
Unsecured bank borrowings IR ITEE (@) 696,276 718,985
Finance lease liabilities MEEEAE © 221 114
696,497 719,099
Current B
Unsecured bank borrowings MR ITEE (@) 1,974,066 1,515,634
Secured mortgage loan BIRBIRIBEER (o) 27,850 31,414
Finance lease liabilities BEMEARG (© 160 450
2,002,076 1,547,498
Total borrowings BIEE () 2,698,573 2,266,597
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19. Borrowings continuea)

Notes:

(@)

Unsecured bank borrowings

The loans are unsecured and bear interest at rates as disclosed in section
(e) below. The loans are repayable within twelve months except for
syndicated loans in the amount of HK$696,276,000 (2012:
HK$698,985,000) and term loans of Nil (2012: HK$20,000,000) which are
repayable on 27 September 2015 and 24 March 2014 respectively.

Secured mortgage loan

The loan is secured by a building with net book value of HK$59,552,000
as at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$60,854,000). The loan contains a
repayment on demand clause and the portion of the loan to be repaid
after one year of HK$24,286,000 (2012: HK$27,850,000) is classified as
current.

Finance lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset
revert to the lessor in the event of default.

19. B E &)

@

EIEIRITIEE
ERAEERFRETXEHEEZF
EHBE-BEREART-_EARNEE"
I 8} E B 70696,276,000/8 T (ZF — =
F 1 698,985,000/ 0) R EHERET (=
Z — —4F : 20,000,000/ 7T) B 5 BIZBE A
—E-AFAAZt+t+tBERZ-ZZE—N@N
F=ZAZ-+MHAEE-

BEHEFIRBER
W-_T—=%+-A=+—H ExH
fiE T )% (B 459,552,000/ T (ZZF — =
F 1 60,854,000/ 70) 2 1EF IR MK IF -
I E R BB AR ERKEEEER - i
R — F 1% (88 /) 01D B 5X24,286,0007%5
JL(=ZF — = £ : 27,850,000/ 7T ) 7 4A
AENER o

MEMENEE
HRENEHREEENRANGRET
HEA @HEEEERARM-

Gross finance lease liabilities MEHREaERARE
— minimum lease payments: —HEAEHRE:
Within 1 year 1R
Between 1 and 5 years 1F £54F

Future finance charges on finance leases

BMEBEENRKBE S H

The present value of finance lease
liabilities is as follows:
Within 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years

1R
1FE5F

REMERENREDT

Group
£ EB
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TFHET
564
146
710
(146)
564
450
114
564
BHERERAT T =-FF#H
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. h=d .
1 9 BOITOWlngS (continued) 19 15 E (4&)
Notes: (continued) Wizt - (48)
(d)  As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as 0 RZE—=F+ZF=+—H Fx5E
follows: JEEEROEENT
Group
AEE
Bank borrowings Financial lease liabilities Total
RITEE MEHEEE &%

PIUK] PIUK] 2012
—E-=F o —E-=F —F—= —g—= —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TERT FET FERT FHET

Within 1 year or on demand 1 4F A &%

R B 2,001,916 1,547,048 160 2,002,076 1,547,498
Between 1 and 2 years 1FEZE24F 696,276 20,000 221 696,497 20,114
Between 2 and 5 years 2FE B - 698,985 - - 698,985

2,698,192 381 2,698,573 2,266,507
(e)  The effective interest rates were as follows: e EEMEMOT:
2013 2012
—E—= —_F—=

Unsecured bank borrowings EILFIEITEE 1.29%-12.50% 1.51%-9.00%

Secured mortgage loan BEBIZBEER 1.15% 1.28%

Finance lease liabilities BMEHEARE 4.00%-7.00% 7.00%

i The carrying amounts of the borrowings were denominated in the ] BEMRmMAENTI S¥ETE:
following currencies:
Group
REE

2013 2012

—E—-= —E—_4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TFET

HKS BT 47,850 91,414

RMB AR 286,117 240,590

Us$ Ep 2,053,927 1,508,995

S$ Frngk ot 179,589 174,483

THB ek 121,738 225,958

RP e & 9,352 25,157

2,698,573 2,266,597
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20. Turnover and Segment Information

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent with
the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this regard,
the Group’s senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs
within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the year is set out below.

(@) Business segments

The main business segments of the Group are the following:

20.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

— =+ -_fA=t+—RHItEE

EXRERDTHER

NEERNDERBASEE &S ETHE
BASRTIGEABERRS BEER
REMAEN —Hz2AAmMER - A&
BraaEBTHRERABRESSE -3t
hHE AERESETREBAS
BRUATEEEEEAREDHEEZE
%

WHEERAXEAREDMELENHER
REENRX S Foak e

[

BREDRBRMZEAETERDMERE

BIEER DRI EEIER - T’?"JZZDE
ERZEBEME K E D 8RR
F o

FAXRKERERD I LFHEDEBRR
ZAHmEDMBEHMT

Bt
i
JiE)
E

TEXBOEET

Segments Principal activities

728 FEEK

Distribution Distribution of IT products (desktop PCs, notebooks, tablets, handhelds, printers,
CPUs, hard disks, memory devices, etc) for the commercial and consumer markets.

P! %ﬁﬁﬁ#?ﬁ%& HEMISHEMBREmM (;'EL B BRAWEN - TIRE

B B LG ITHH PREER ER LEES) -

Enterprise systems Provision of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT

servers, databases, storage and security products) for IT infrastructure.

RERS HERAREAMKERBENEERS TE (PR - BIERLK - Un/NTIR
BOBEE BTEERLER) -

IT services IT infrastructure design and implementation, training, maintenance and support
services.

BB IR BB R ER R MR RINTT B BERIERT -

BAZKRERLDF —ZFFH 127
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20. Turnover and Segment Information ontinueq)

(@)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Business segments (continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2013 are

as follows:

Total segment revenue

Segment results
Finance costs

Distribution

k|

HK$’000

FET

D E R B R 31,953,879

D EPELE 556,042
Bt 7% B A

Share of associates’ profits 4 {4 B & A
i )
Share of joint venture’s loss S 15 & &1 %
i}
Profit before taxation B 4 AT i
Taxation B1E
Profit for the year F g F
Reportable segment assets 7] ¥ & 5 3B 3 7,278,939

Annual Report 2013

20 EXHERIHER @

@@ EBoIE

HE—_ZT—=F+=-A=+—8H
IEFEMDHEENT -

Enterprise
systems
EERS
HK$°000
THET
8,064,408

IT services
BB B AR
HK$’000

FE R
220,999

Group
xE
HK$°000
FHT
40,239,286

139,624 11,420 707,086

(81,198)
625,888

33,102

(188)

658,802
(133,675)

525,127

1,921,495 39,953 9,240,387
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20. Turnover and Segment Information continueq)

(@)

Business segments (continueq)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2012 are

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

—=F+ZA=tT—HIEEE

0. EXBERTMER W

@ B
BE-T-——#+-A=+—8

as follows: IEFEHNDHEERNT
Enterprise
Distribution systems [T services Group
bais TERG BEABERS KEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAET FAT FAT
Total segment revenue D afl s AasE 29,998,220 6,873,874 225,498 37,097,592
Segment results DEPELE 466,245 135,366 9,508 611,119
Finance costs i E M (75,862)
535,257
Share of associates’ profits 5315 Bt &4 A 7]
3 7] 36,304
Profit before taxation R T B i A 571,561
Taxation I8 (107,162)
Profit for the year F A 464,399
Reportable segment assets ~ AJ R & 7 3 & & 6,248,133 1,688,291 49,509 7,985,933

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only one
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue. Distribution revenue from this customer
amounted to approximately HK$7,624,000,000 (2012:

HK$7,636,000,000).

AEBHEFEZ UL B — %
RpBHRBAEERKZI0%HE
F-RAZBREFPHNDHEWZEOE

7,624,000,000/8 T (=& — — 4 :
7,636,000,0003% 7T) o
BHERERAA —ZFFRH
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20. Turnover and Segment Information continueq) 20 XK IHER @
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit and b AHREIHRANREEMN
assets ¥R

Profit il
Reconciliation of segment profit to the profit for the year in the
consolidated income statement is not presented as the segment
profit is the same as the profit for the year presented in the
consolidated income statement.

130

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Assets

2012
—E—= —_F—=

HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FHET
Reportable segment assets AR E D EEE 9,240,387 7,985,933
Goodwill EES 333,052 339,756
Interest in associates PR & R BRI RE 2 315,467 310,172
Interest in a joint venture NEEDENER 23,041 -
Deferred tax assets FEERTBEE 54,578 55,735
Other receivables and prepayments H 4th fE U 718 & FE f~F 3RIE 392,602 219,821
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEY 1,168,535 936,009
Consolidated total assets HEREE 11,527,662 9,847,426

Annual Report 2013
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20. Turnover and Segment Information continueq) 20 EEHER T HER »
(c) Geographical information ¢ HEER
The Group’s two business segments operate principally in North AEEBNMEEB>IBEELEIL
Asia and South East Asia. TRREREE -
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FBx FiET
Revenue Iy =
North Asia pifE] 31,485,864 28,651,797
South East Asia RED 8,753,422 8,445,795
Total segment revenue 7 2B UL = AR EE 40,239,286 37,097,592
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer WaBEEPAERRE D -
is located.
2013 2012
—2-= —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Assets E5E
North Asia pifcE] 7,303,538 5,681,808
South East Asia N 1,936,849 2,304,125
Reportable segment assets AREDLEE 9,240,387 7,985,933
Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the ARENHEEREEEMTH
assets are located. 5o
21. Other Gains, Net 21, H W A F 88

Interest income

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Net exchange gain

Others

A B WA
HEME BMERREZER

PEE 54 Ul 05 B8
H Al

2013 2012
—E—= —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET THETT
10,110 7,795
(106) (230)
34,114 1,462
12,051 11,5632
56,169 20,559
BHERERAA —T-=FFRH
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22.

23.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Operating Profit

22.

Operating profit is derived after charging the following:

]

BN TSR AT RIEMS

2013
—F—=

HK$’000

FTEX

Cost of inventories

Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments

— Salaries, allowances and welfare
— Provident fund contributions
Equity-settled share-based payments
Operating lease rentals in respect of
premises and warehouse
Auditors’ remuneration
— audit fee
— non-audit fee
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Provision for and write off of inventories
Provision for and net write off/on of
trade receivables

FE KA
BTN (BRESEH)
—Fx o EMNER
— AEEHK
VAR A7 52 A< 2 ¥ 28 8 B 5K0R
MERERZEEMERS

Z BB 2
—EZEM
— B EM

ME - BERRETE

17 & B i 8
g 5 AR B LM
ARRFH

38,702,328
382,753
52,116
1,114

57,676

5,584
2,198

19,805
3,936

58,652

Finance Costs

23.

BB

2013
—g—=

HK$’000

FiE

Interest expense on:
— Bank overdrafts
— Unsecured bank borrowings
— Secured mortgage loan
— Finance lease liabilities

THZRBEZMBRAX
—RITEX
—EERRITEE
—BEMRBER
—RMEHERE

25
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2012

HK$'000
TAET

35,677,636

379,648
54,368
10,228

55,208

6,179
1,184

19,354
12,5682

46,602

2012
—_E—-—F
HK$’'000
FAET

25
75,201
431
205

75,862
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24. Taxation 24, Bi1H
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement RizEEmRMBR 2 BRIBIE
represents:
2013 2012
== —E -4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Current taxation REAFR T8
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEMEH 48,721 55,028
— Overseas taxation —BINIR 76,761 57,813
Over-provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEEBNESHBERE
in prior years (14) (12)
Over-provision for overseas taxation W FEEIINGIEREEE
in prior years (81) (2,497)
Deferred taxation (Note 18) IEAERLIE (M55 18) 8,288 (3,170)
133,675 107,162
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2012: BEAFGSHIREBEE-T—=F1+=
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 A=+ —B I FE G ERB & R A
December 2013. 16.6% M X (=T — —F : 16.6%) t 12 #&
o
Overseas taxation has been calculated based on the estimated Y HNELIE 1R 6 ) 2 1 BT B AR B B LA K
assessable profits for the year at rates of taxation prevailing in the SEETEELEMEERERNE X
countries in which the entities comprising the Group operate. & -
A withholding tax of 5% is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect RABEMIIEERECER_TTENFE —
of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign investment A—RERIWEGFMEENRE DK
enterprises in the PRC earned after 1 January 2008. MmmESR A EHWE% R TERE -

BAZRERQIA —T-=FF%H 133
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24 Taxatlon (continued) 24

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong as follows:

B )

AEEBRBRAEN 2 HARERTAER
RRELAZEWSBIERNT

2013 2012
—E2—= — T

HK$°000 HK$’000

THET TET

658,802 571,561

Profit before taxation B B B &

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% W R16.5%:1 &

Effect of different tax rates in different TREMBAEZERTRAME 22
tax jurisdictions

Income not subject to taxation AR ZBA

Expenses not deductible for BREME TSR A
taxation purposes

Over-provision in prior years BEFERERE

Tax losses for which no deferred tax assets 7 £ f 32 1% 3E %1 18 & 7 #) §4 18 /&5
were recognised

Tax effect of withholding tax of profit from R B fff [ A & i 1| FE 12 5 49
the PRC subsidiaries N E

108,702 94,308

4,915 3,043
(1,996) (1,941)

12,598 10,074

(88) (2,509)

18
1,503 1,473

8,041 2,714

Taxation charge HIEZH

133,675 107,162

25. Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the  25.
Company

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2013 is dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company to the extent of HK$40,583,000 (2012:
HK$31,128,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

26. Dividends

)

()

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

Final dividend proposed after the
balance sheet date of HK8 cents @A s A Il
(2012: HKS8 cents) per ordinary share (Z=—

REHEARBERRARE SR

— 4 gEAL)

26. 1% B
(i) ﬁWEEEﬁT$@E$
BmEFEEARE
2013 2012
—E—-= —E—-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
120,000 100,000

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not
been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

REEBRBIRRARELER
HEAERAREE-

(i) FAMERIKFMS E—BIK
FEEMLENSFAQGE

¢

Final dividend in respect of the previous

the year of HK8 cents (2012: HK8 cents)
per ordinary share

8Bl (=F

FAHE KRN B E—
financial year, approved and paid during 4 € /) K Hi I B =A% i
—=F : 881)

mEFEBEARE

2013 2012

—E—= —E——-%F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FER FAET
B B
A%

99,203

BHERERAF T —=FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

27. Earnings Per Share 27.

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$502,725,000 (2012: HK$444,236,000) and the weighted average
of 1,488,817,000 shares (2012: 1,488,062,000 shares®) in issue taking
into account the effect of bonus issue as stated in note 14 during the

BRER

SRS

AFEESRERARMDIEAR QAR EREEF
B A JE 15 % F1502,725,000% T (=T —
—F 1 444,236,000 0) R B T KRG
Z hnHE S 159 $01,488,817,000/% (— T — —
 :1,488,062,0008*) 5t & » W & 7 &

year. MIE14FT S F NAL R BT 2 & -
2012
T4
Issued ordinary shares as at R—A—BE#8TE@ER (TR
1 January (thousands) 1,488,044* 1,488,667~
Share options exercised (thousands) BETEERE(THD) 773 =
Repurchase for own shares (thousands) B B AN & iR 10 (F %) = (605)
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt A=+—RaL@mBmE
shares as at 31 December (thousands) FHE(FRR) 1,488,817 1,488,062"
Basic earnings per share EREARAF
(HK cents per share) (&R 33.77 29.85*
Diluted s

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based on
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$502,725,000 (2012: HK$444,236,000) and the weighted average
number of shares of 1,488,817,000 (2012: 1,492,254,000 shares®),
adjusted for the bonus issue during the year (note 14) calculated as

AFEEGREERN DIEAR G EDS
A A JE & /502,725,000 T (=&
— Z 4 1 444,236,000 7T ) & B Hn 4E
19 #01,488,817,0000% ( = & — — 4 :
1,492,254,000 % *) (B 5t F MBI AT iR 317
(M1 EL AL FEWT -

follows:
2013 2012
—_E—=5F —EF—=

Weighted average number of ordinary BEITE BB INEF & (TR

shares in issue (thousands) 1,488,817 1,488,062
Adjustment for assumed conversion of BEEREEER AR (TH)

share options (thousands) 4,192*
Weighted average number of ordinary & 58 & M 2 AR N R S 9 B

shares for diluted earnings per share (FA%)

(thousands) 1,488,817 1,492,254*
Diluted earnings per share & #5% & A

(HK cents per share) (& BB AL) 33.77 29.77*
- Adjusted for bonus issue in 2013 * BT —=FHARETELAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

28. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EEREAREEEMNSE

Emoluments
(@) Directors’ emoluments @ EE=Me
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to RERNENKENTFTARAES
Directors of the Company during the year are as follows: e BEIT
2013 2012
—EFE—= —_EF—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T FET
Fees we 986 1,633
Other emoluments Hfth Bl
— Basic salaries and housing allowances ~ — E A #H & REE 28 8,817 10,883
— Discretionary bonus —EIBIEL 7,627 5,978
— Contributions to pension scheme —RIRETEIH I 212 576
— Equity-settled share-based payments — UM N EREE
w18 802 3,758
18,444 22,828
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 REBEE_ZT—=F+=-A=+—H
December 2013 is set out below: EFE ZEFZHFWMEHMOT
Equity-
Basic salaries Contribution settled
and housing Discretionary to pension  share-based
Name of Director allowance bonus scheme payments
DR 17 32 43
BEXFHFLR BIRGHE ZREELEHE
BEEH®E e EREMN BBIEAL N E | &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET TET TET TERT TERT
Executive Directors HMITEE
Li Jialin FEM 1,387 3,620 1 232 5,250
Chow Ying Chi Lz 987 1,225 11 105 2,428
Ong Wei Hiam, Wiliam T &N 2,612 760 15 186 3,644
Chan Hoi Chau BRI 786 720 15 186 1,707
Mao Xianggian FE [ AT 614 - 23 - 637
Non-executive Directors FEMITESE
Liu Li Kl
Liang Xin 2R
Tay Eng Hoe &5k AN
Independent Non-executive BYIFERITEE
Directors
Chan Po Fun, Peter faR & 25
Li Wei By
Ng Yat Cheung RAEE

BHERERAA —T-=FFRH 137



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R AR BT RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

28. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EEREAREEEMNSE

Emoluments ontinue) (#)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continuea) @ ZEE=EME @
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 REBEE_ZET——F+=-_A=+—
December 2012 is set out below: BILFE SESZ2HEWET @
™
Basic salaries Contribution  Equity-settled
and housing Discretionary to pension share-based
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme payments Total
LARR 9 S A+
EXFHFE R BIREHEl ZHERAEAE
EEHA we & E#E A BB TEAL HER I8 A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAT FAET FAT
Executive Directors BITES
Li Jialin FEM — 4,800 3,200 400 930 9,330
Chow Ying Chi WEE - 785 485 63 844 2177
Ong Wei Hiam, William EERIF 7 2,100 1,027 12 744 3,954
Chan Hoi Chau B M - 787 789 12 744 2,332
Mao Xianggian ESED] - 2,411 477 89 124 3,101
Non-executive Directors EMITES
Liu Li 2150 120 - — - - 120
Tay Eng Hoe &5k A0 1,062 - - - 124 1,186
Independent Non-executive BIUEBITES
Directors
Chan Po Fun, Peter PR 25 140 — - - 124 264
Li Wei FE 120 - - - 124 244
Ng Yat Cheung REE 120 - - - - 120
1,633 10,883 5,978 576 3,758 22,828
Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include approximately EXFHBECEEMe B RN TR
HK$442,000 (2012: HK$628,000) paid to Independent Non- FEMITE B A L442,0008 L (Z T — =
executive Directors. & : 628,000/ L) ©
No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as an FARERLERALTSAEEAME (=
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation T——F ) ERARSIEEMARE
for loss of office during the year (2012: Nil). B EENMAREREE 2 RESIEAR
B
During the year, no Director of the Company waived any RERA - AAFIEF I EEWEAEM[
emoluments (2012: Nil). e (ZTE—ZF:F)-
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Emoluments (ontinveq)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

28. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 28.

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included two (2012: one) Directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The

emoluments payable to the remaining three (2012: four)
individuals during the year are as follows:

EEREREEEME

(%)

b EEESHFAL

AEEBFAZAEMEER AL
BERA(ZE—ZF: —R)=E
EHEZHEE R EXENZ
AP RE - RFAZNTFEH=
H(ZE—ZF - mB)ALZHE

Basic salaries and allowances
Discretionary bonuses
Contributions to pension schemes

EAR % & MoRRL
B 1B FEAL
RRET B

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument band

HesE

HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000
HK$8,000,001 — HK$8,500,000

4,000,001% 7T % 4,500,000 7% 7T
4,500,001 % 7T % 5,000,000 7% 7T
5,000,001 % JT Z 5,500,000/ 7T
8,000,001 % JT & 8,500,0007% 7T

m

2012
—E—-= —ET—-—4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FHET
5,535 4,889
11,483 17,383
96 224
17,114 22,496

B F T 5 E

Number of individuals

2012
1
1
1
y
BHERERAR T =—FF%
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

29. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash

generated from/(used in) operations

29 MEBRERERKRMFE

BR Bt Al i A B AS & FR 1§ (PR
R)REFEHR

Profit before taxation
Interest income
Interest expense
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Share of associates’ profits
Share of joint venture’s loss
Equity-settled share-based payment

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Operating profit before working capital
changes

Changes in working capital
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Trade and other payables

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operations

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
B A% A & 658,802 571,561
FLEWA (10,110) (7,795)
e 81,198 75,862
ME - BEMREBITE
19,805 19,354
74k B R B g (33,102) (36,304)
SMEEEEEE 188 —
S z#EmgEE
KIA 1,114 10,228
HEME - BEMEEZ
E 18 106 230
BEESEEA 2 ICE
gl 718,001 633,136
BEESEE
B 5 & E A fE W FKIE (1,512,923) (1,296,917)
EE 78,653 (595,783)
B 5 K E A FES FRIB 849,838 534,988
KERB/ (AR & 758
133,569 (724,576)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # = =%

30. Commitments Under Operating Leases

31.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

NM%tomememmsmmmems@mmmwm

Bt 75 R 2R B R (&)

— =+ -_fA=t+—RHItEE

REMERDN 2&IE

RZZE—=ZF+-_RA=+—H &~5H
BETTHEZEEHEMAEZAE
BEMENZETENT -

Within 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years

1F R
1FEE5F

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and items
of plant and machinery and office equipment held under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years,
with an option to renew each lease upon expiry when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

Related Party Transactions 31.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@) Director’s quarter

On 1 November 2013, the Group entered into a rental agreement
with Joint Honour Development Limited, a company in which Mr.
Li Jialin (“Mr. Li"), the Chairman and Executive Director of the
Company is a major shareholder, in respect of a director’s
quarter. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group paid a monthly
rental of HK$200,000 to Joint Honour Development Limited (2012:
monthly rental of HK$200,000 from 1 January 2012 to 31
October 2012).

(b) License fee

The Group also entered into an agreement with Kong Lung Ind
Co., a company in which Mr. Li is a major shareholder. Pursuant
to the agreement, the Group paid a monthly license fee of
HK$14,000 in respect of the China-Hong Kong Vehicle License
to Kong Lung Ind Co., (2012: HK$14,000).

2013 2012
—E—-= —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
35,505 30,739
25,544 25,903
61,049 56,642
TEEBRZEMERNUEEREREZ
BB R IA R R EREEE 2 &R

AN HOZNTFH-—RR—E2=%F"

P& 40 B B 1R T 42 A B 0 B R
EFHEEMBGR - BEAOBRRARA
He -

BEALRS
UFARMBEATRTZ RS

@ EBESE=R

RZZE—=F+—A—HB ' ~&H
HARNAEERANTEETEM
%iﬁ?%ib%f%%%Z@
REFERERARG—HES
BRI —HHEEDRE - BRIBEZD
HOAKEERASEFREEBRAA
¥ £+ A #200,000/8 T( =% — =
F H-_TE—-—F—F—B®RE
—ET-——_#+HF=+—HItRH
200,000 7T) °

b) MRE

AEETHETEEAFTEREN
NRIBEEERARLIHE - RE
Ze o AEBERPEEWER
FASZMERE14,000/8 T F /58

EEQNR(ZZT— —F 14,0008
JT) °
EBHERERAE —SFEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

1. BEAELTRZ »

TEEEAEME(BE
PO B 52 28 % BB 2 <& #H)

31. Related Party Transactions continueq)

(c) Key management compensation (including the ()
amounts disclosed in note 28)

2013 2012

—E—= —E—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

Short-term employment benefits EHEERN 63,712 66,177

Other long-term employment benefits HitRHESRF 1,336 4,761

65,048 70,938
32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New R.BEZE-—Z=F1_§
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not =t+—-HILF F% CME
Yet Effective for the Year ended 31 December B AREMZIBE] - 3
2013 g%&m&mammz

A

BEEABBREZ2TIZEAH B
MAgEBHREBEZE_ZE—=F+_A
ST —HLEFEHRERB I RRAY
BHREFERZBBEBIT AR —HFE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a few amendments and a new standard which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2013 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These include the following

142

which may be relevant to the Group:

A BENATAREREEGRE

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
RIS BB 2RERN
B HBER

Amendments to HKAS 32 “Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities”

Amendments to HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets
— Recoverable amounts disclosure for
non-financial assets”

Amendments to HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:

Disclosures — Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting”

Amendments to HKAS 10 “Consolidated

financial statements”, HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of

interests in other entities” and HKAS 27

“Separate financial statements — Investment entities”

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2013
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BEGFERE6WIEERE —
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MMERT

BB G ER 395
[EMTA: RE-—(TETAEER
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BB G ERFE105
[RE M HHRE] BRAMBERE
ERE1R2RHBERNEMERZ
I RBAGHEAF7H
(B BEHRER-IREERBINER

1 January 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &#EZ=-Z—=F+=-_A=+—HILFE

32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New

Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
\2{8’[1 gﬁective for the Year ended 31 December
(continued)

Note:

The original effective date of 1 January 2015 is postponed and the new
mandatory effective date has yet to be determined.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation
from the Company’s first financial year commencing after 3 March
2014 (i.e. the Company'’s financial year which will begin on 1 January
2015) in accordance with section 358 of the Ordinance. The Group is
in the process of making an assessment of the expected impact of the
changes in Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily
only affect the presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements.

BE-_ZE-=F+1+=F#
=+ -HILEFECHEM
ﬁn*?ﬂi?ﬂ*%
ZHIRBRAETRZ
EE

Bt -

CE-RAF-A-HZREREHELEH
FORHEMEHPRFTEE -

AEBEAEFELFEITNERNERB
MzEHEE-

UbOh - RIBFTE B QR AURDI (£622F) F
36815 ZIGDIFEIB R B REF IR
ERARBE _ZE-—NOF=A=RE
MEEFRFEEIARRER ZF —
hE-A- BB RFE) EX -
AEEREHEONERERHE QA
GO HREWBERRNBEHRZEE
HAfE - BEZEBAIRLRA/ATEHED
R ABEBETEFEREAVBHREA
MEMZIRIE -
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Financial Summary

BB E

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group forthe AEEBBEREATBRFE 2 EEULREER

=

last five financial years is set out below: BEMEHIDOT
Results
A 173 i
E 4
Nine months
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

CERL RN 5% —F HE-F-—F HE-T-TEF HE-TINSF
AELERREl  — -8 f-A=f-B +t-A=t-B t-A=t+-A

LEE IHFE IHEFE IHFE EE A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FAT FHAT FHAT FHT
Turnover BEE 40,239,286 37,097,592 32,617,058 26,212,600 19,705,697
Profit before taxation % B T3 F 658,802 571,561 634,581 510,363 420,714
Taxation g (133,675) (107,162) (145,787) (102,305) (100,887)
Profit for the year/period EERRE T 525,127 464,399 488,794 408,058 319,827
Attributable to: AT AL &R :
Equity Shareholders of RAREER/FAEA
the Company 502,725 444,236 462,516 370,280 276,333
Non-controlling interests FE 1 IR 22,402 20,163 26,278 37,778 43,494

525,127 464,399 488,794 408,058 319,827

Assets and Liabilities
EEREE

As at As at As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
R=ZB—=%F RZE—ZF RZT——%F RZE—ZF RZZETNEF
==L -l - —f=+—H +-A=+—H +=ZA=+—8 +=ZA=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FTER FET FET FET FET

Total assets WwEE 11,527,662 9,847,426 8,545,115 7,905,510 6,391,828
Total liabilities maE (7,907,262) (6,612,744) (5,747,886) (5,579,178) (4,494,639)

Total equity B 3,620,400 3,234,682 2,797,229 2,326,332 1,897,189
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